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[R/2A7] Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Vedan International (Holdings) Ltd. has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 2003. The
Group is the leading producer of fermentation-based amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch-based industrial
products in Asia. Our products are sold to food distributors, international trading companies, and manufacturers of food,
paper, textile, and chemical products in Vietnam and other ASEAN countries, the PRC, Japan, Taiwan and several European
countries. Most of our products are marketed under the VEDAN brand name.

Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market
expansion, the Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production base. Since then, the Group*s production
has undergoing continuous expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group is currently the largest MSG producer in
the Southeast Asian region, and the largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch- based industrial products in Vietnam. In
1995, Vedan acquired a factory in Xiamen to focus on developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group further acquired the
assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan Foods Company Limited, which will be developed into its business operations
center in the PRC, signifying its determination and commitment to become a major player in the PRC market. To ensure the
Group has a stable supply of starch and a strong production platform for starch related products, Vedan Vietnam acquired
Ve-Thai Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November 2005. In December the same year, Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. was established and started production of GA in April 2006. Shangdong Vedan Snowflake will play a crucial role in
Vedan*s global supply chain in the future, allowing it to meet the demand and to stabilize prices of raw materials, hence
facilitate its business development strategy in China.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and China, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing
of advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical processing technology, coupled with the experienced
management team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Financial Highlights
B E

BZ12A3MALEE
For the year ended 31 December
2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000 Change
(F%=xT) (F%=m) #1t
Turnover S 317,431 290,695 9.2%
Profit from operations KEBF 20,738 14,762 40.5%
Net profit Farp | 16,856 10,915 54.4%
Shareholders’ funds BRERERS 257,716 243,984 5.6%
Basic earnings per share (US cents) FREARBF (EAWL) 1.1 0.72 54.2%
Diluted earnings per share (US cents) SREEER (EWL) 1.10 0.72 52.7%
Interim dividend per share (US cents) FRHERRR B (ZEAL) 0.26202 0.200 31.9%
Final dividend per share (US cents) AR E GEMW) 0.29105 0.158 82.2%
Dividend payout ratio KB = 50% 50% -
Turnover E X% Net Profit $iF)
12 months ended 31 Dec 2007 12 months ended 31 Dec 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=+—HIt+=ER BHE-_ZZ+F+_A=+—HIt+=ER
in US$'000 FE7T in US$'000 FE7T
2007 I 317,431 2007 N 16,856
2006 [ 290,695 2006 [ 10915
2005 [T 257,904 2005 [T 7,947
Turnover by Products I ER B EZEXEH Turnover by Geographic Location B ESHZ E X
12 months ended 31 Dec 2007 12 months ended 31 Dec 2007
HE-_ZE+F+_A=+T—HBIL+=@A HE_ZE+F+_A=+T—HBI+=@A

64.5% MSG H¥5

11.6% GA &8 50.2% Vietnam #RE
6.6% Lysin

ERE 16.4% The PRC thE
Modified
Starch

Japan BZ
SR

4.7%  Specialty
Chemicals

HRE2ER

4.4%  Others Hfth

11.0% Asean 3EB

7.4% Others Hftt
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Major Corporate Events

]

Development of Modified Starch
Business in China
FEEEHRRRE

20074 EEEMRMEREES213M - TEHEERASLRA
S EEAR NS RME R E MR o 2007F L 2006F HEE
MR T243% - B TEGHERS RN - RN T2007F 5
+—ETPEERRERANEMENREES - L TEH AZFK
AEGRA -

In 2007, sales volume of modified starch in Shanghai amounted
to 5,213 tonnes. The main products sold were modified starch
for frozen meat products, jam filling and frozen noodle product.
Compared with 2006, sales in 2007 grew by 243%. To actively
promote usage of modified starch, we participated in the 11th
Food Ingredients China exhibition. Below is a photo taken at
Vedan's booth in the exhibition.

Marketing Activities in Rural Areas
B3R 1T 88 7 B

P ER A5 IR B R IR an B9 85 & - FE2007F HE I ABSAA T80
B HIZAWESERMERAZ ZBHMTRENTIS
EAWEY EERASERGHES  NEEHER 58
WEEBARRER  EIHEABERTSSERNAR -
TERMETHEDHIEEF -

In 2007, the China operation launched marketing activities in
rural areas to boost sales of MSG and seasonings. Its aim was to
promote the Company's products to second- and third-tier cities
and villages, spreading product messages to consumers in these
markets to enhance their understanding of the Company's
products and confidence in purchase. The ultimate goal of such
efforts was to boost sales and enlarge market share.

The photo below shows marketing activity in progress in rural area:

t Vedan Vietnam 2007
2007<F 88 Ry B £%

2007
17/1/2007 RAREAZE FERX 20065 & i 7% 2 5 B R 1T
BRI RO KERSR
People's Committee Completed taxation obligation in 2006 and
of Dong Nai Province performance in compliance with tariff policies
17/5/2007 AR & FTEX2006F EEL A E RNV EBEERS
Finance Minister Completed obligation on tax payment for
import and export goods in 2006,
reporting good performance
4/10/2007 PRUTEE-BEPRE 2006 F EHBED HERERS
Central Executive Excellent performance in the education
Committee - Education promotion campaign in 2006
Promotion Association in Vietnam
2008
4/2/2008 RE-EMAZSER 29120065 F 95 B A B BB R BB R

Chairman of People’s Committee
of Vung Tau-Ba Ria

Good performance in relief work
after major typhoon in 2006

Vedan Shandong

WRETE
February 2007 Injected US$5.20 million in capital
2007428 HEES208ET

November 2007
200711 A

Phase Two of MSG refinery with annual production capacity of 25,000 tonnes commenced production

FE25000W8 IR 15 M AE RI2 M FI 0 A /2



Long-established in Asia, Vedan International (Holdings)
Limited is a premier manufacturer of fermentation-
based amino acids, food additive and cassava starch-
based products. Its prominent reputation has been built
on the quality manufacture of MSG, a key food additive
lying at the heart of the unique tastes of Asia’s two
billion consumers. The Group’s vision of the future is
simple: to expand and enrich its markets across the Asian
region while developing new products for the demand
of consumers.

VRN (2D BRA T RIN - RABE L B
SEW  ARFNIAAERSEERNNELER © %3
BRI REREEEFEORBEER L  MHEERR
FIETN =+ RN BBR AP A EE (T - £E
RROEE  ARRIATNDE  BRFES AR
BENER




Great Vision
S EEE

Armed with modern technology and
sound management, we have
successfully created a number of
quality products to cater to the
consumers’ tastes and demands.

BERANKREEEE - RFRSE
RIZEREER  WAESHEZENOK
FMER o
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

The global economy and raw material supply and demand experienced
rapid change in 2007. The chain reactions of sustained high oil prices
and unstable climate led to an upset in balance between supply and
demand of raw materials and correspondingly rise in material prices,
pushing up the production cost of different products and affected the
operation of many industries. To cope with the rapidly changing market
environment and material supply situation in 2007, the Group focused
on implementing strategies to stabilize its operations and ensure proper
deployment. With prudence, it endeavored to ensure stable supply of
carbohydrate sources, strengthen its core businesses and expand overseas
markets. Such efforts had allowed the Group to maintain stable profit
growth and advance its business.

As for the Group’s operation in 2007, it recorded a total turnover of
US$317,431,000, a 9.2% growth when compared with 2006, and net
profit exceeding US$16,850,000, representing a surge of 54.4%.
Turnover from the major Vietnam and China markets saw a 5.2% and
16.3% growth respectively, with MSG and modified starch delivering
more satisfactory performance. The ASEAN market, which has been
reporting strong turnover growth year after year, continued to thrive in
2007 and brought in 38.3% more in turnover than last year, accounting

2007 F ERNKBERFEERHFE(CEHEER
& RAEREST TRRRTZESCHEH
WIE - EREBRYAEFNRE  wHWEL
B ETENSEREMEERANGRE - £

MEBRZEX L « PILA - EEERRDEMHE
REQERESBEEN—FE  SETERK
MAFIBELEEMB - IR RIBITHVERAS -
ZERIR - RO EXLBERDEIITS -
BEAEESEZLCHNNRED  SEDNRRE
¥ BHNEFEE  REANRBENKE

REIEE2007FMEE - BEEEEERIMFY
ABETT » B2006F18FA9.2%  FHEBiB1/T6
AEETT » 20065 FHN154.4% « £EE
BEEXEUEEFEMES  EEEHRIKKS.2% K
16.3% * MIKBEREMERNHEERBR AR
e MEBFEEFEHARREMAORBERR - £
2007 F B 383%BE KK - BAEEBERE
B11% » o0 BB M e M FES - IR




Chairman'’s Statement (continued)

for 11% of the Group’s total turnover. The geographical advantages of
the Group’s Vietnam operations were fully realized and the ASEAN
countries have become an indispensable market in helping the Group
run a stable operation. Furthermore, the Group'’s core products reported
healthy growth in 2007. Amino acids products, modified starches and
specialty chemicals all performed well in major markets. Turnover from
modified starches grew an impressive 51.7% when compared with last
year. These fruitful results proved that the Group was developing its
business in the right direction.

Same as other industry players around the world, the Group faced
persistent high raw material prices last year. The Group became aware
of this structural problem in the industry a few years ago and had begun
paying attention on the issue. In addressing tense supply of agricultural
products, apart from adopting flexible procurement, the Group also
continued to conduct research on different carbohydrate sources and
extended the plantation areas of carbohydrate sources so as to diversify
risks as well as secure carbohydrate sources at lower cost. Also, applying
the production advantages of its core businesses, the Group continued
to enhance production efficiency and reduce production cost. On the
operational front, in addition to adjusting the price of products for import
and export in a timely basis to reflect changes in cost, the Group also
stepped up efforts in expanding export market with the aim of seizing
first opportunities and balancing operational risk. Facing a rapidly
changing economy last year, the Group exercised prudence and adopted
corresponding strategies to lower cost and operational expenses while
expanding its markets. These initiatives enabled the Group to achieve
turnover growth and remarkable increase in profit despite the adverse
market environment.

—ZZLFFH Annual Report 2007

FREBRRKAEERBTLE - TrAIBROEE
T - B—FHHE - LEEMZOERE2007FHE
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Chairman’s Statement (continued) EEHREE (@)

Prospects of 2008

Since the beginning of this year, there have been different signs pointing
to continuous or even worsening global inflation and raw material
shortages. Heeding such an environment, the Group has planned a series
of measures to help it overcome the challenges. The Group’s primary
task for this year will be securing stable supply of raw materials. In
addition to developing carbohydrate sources of higher yield such as
tropical sugar beet and sweet sorghum, the Group has also started to
identify more carbohydrate sources in Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia.
Concrete benefits from these efforts are expected to be seen in the next
few years. If the Group have access to stable raw material supply, it will
be able apply its sales and marketing competence to meet growing
market demand and expand and strengthen its core amino acids and
modified starch products. It will place special focus on expanding the
export market and timely adjustment of sales strategies to match
changing market conditions and reflect changes in cost. These strategies
will help enhance the Group’s profitability. Furthermore, the Group is
negotiating with several well established overseas companies about
technological cooperative and production projects to extend the
application of fermentative technology and boost production and sales
of new products.

MSG, seasonings and modified starch will remain as the core products
of the Group’s China operation. It will also look for other high value
added projects to improve operational results and profit contribution.
After Vietnam gained accession to the WTO last year, the country has
seen active investment from foreign investors, booming economic

REE20084F
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Chairman’s Statement (continued) EEHREE (&)

—ZZLFFH Annual Report 2007 CEII:)

activities and rapid development of infrastructure. Its large consumer
market is also full of lucrative business opportunities. With years of
operational experience in Vietnam, the Group is set to fully capture these
opportunities. It is negotiating with several large domestic and overseas
companies about plans for cooperation in retail service related businesses
or businesses with strong potential. It hopes to increase investment in
other business areas in addition to existing fermentation related
businesses and capitalize on its geographical advantage to realize a
synergistic business effects and enhance the overall operational efficiency.
The Group recognises that it has a challenging business environment to
cope with and overcome. It will conduct business with prudence yet
remain innovative and practical, and continue to expand its operations
and create higher value for shareholders.

By order of the Board

Yang, Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 April 2008

BEAMEREDERR - BEANBEMGELRE
BEAMEE  SECREEMZEA - BRAT
SHBERABNEY - BATGERBRARE
MBEIRSNARDER - REIAFRH SRR AR
NWESR  BRERBEAENIN  ETRBHE
ENRA - BEENE  ERRBEEMROK
RAHRAZEMENLEER - LE - EBH
BRNEEBEDT  SESERCHERIKE
RE MW kR - RAIESAZEENE - A
HREE BT B M ORI R ARAR AT IR O R B - A
BTE RS ERAE EN RS ESRRAESR
R EME -

EEEEGD

S

L FEd

2E —ZT/\FWA+HEA







STANDING OUT

IN A SPECIALIZED
INDUSTRY
ZEREPIEE MK
T

As a successful long-term player in a market with significant
entry barriers, Vedan International has distinct competitive
advantages that add real value to its products. With
advanced expertise in large-scale fermentation technology,
starch processing conversion technology and chemical and
electro-chemical technology, Vedan International is
developing new products which represent the latest
breakthroughs in industrial science and look set to be major
profit drivers in the future.

KABBAEENEZATRES  MEBERBIELHES
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group’s total turnover broke the US$300 million mark in 2007,
increased by 9.2%, or US$26,736,000, to US$317,431,000. Net profit
attributable to equity holders of the company for the year grew an
impressive 54.4%, or US$5,941,000, to US$16,856,000. Revenue
generated from the Vietnam and China subsidiaries were
US$268,635,000 and US$48,796,000, up 10.7% and 7.7% respectively.
On the product front, with the international price of lysine picking up,
the Group resumed production of lysine, reclaiming capacity previously
shifted to producing GA. As lysine full scale production returned in full
force in the second half year, the turnover from GA dropped. Other
than that, all of the Group’s products saw steady growth. The main
revenue growth contributors for the year were the increased MSG export
of our Vietnam operation, growing modified starch sales in the China
market and the rising of lysine price. By market, ASEAN countries (other
than Vietnam) have the best performance in terms of sales, recorded an
increase of 38.3% at approximately US$9,636,000. The proportion of
contribution from the market to the Group's overall turnover had
increased from 8.7% in 2006 to 11% in 2007, mirroring the success of
the Group in nurturing this important market. Sales from China and
Vietnam markets also grew 16.3% and 5.2% respectively during the
year.

Although the prices of oil, agricultural products and other commodities
in general stood rather high in 2007, the Group managed to make
commendable profit thanks to the lower molasses price relative to 2006
and lower net finance cost, down by US$1,467,000, resulting from
decreased borrowings. Hence, gross profit and net profit attributable to
equity holders of the company increased by US$7,113,000 and
US$5,941,000, or 13.3% and 54.4%, to US$60,586,000 and
US$16,856,000 respectively. Gross profit margin and net profit margin
surged from 18.4% and 3.8% in 2006 to 19.1% and 5.3% respectively
this year.

EL L

FE - FHREREWIBET - &
317,431,000 70 » L ZETRNFKEI.2% S5
26,736,000 7C * #K9.2% - AR FIRIEREEA
JE(EFFE SEAIERS54.4% @ ©%85,941,0003%
JC * #16,856,000% 7T © i @B A R 2
W% £268,635,000% 7T B[E B A AT K
Z W 548,796,000K 7T - REAR S RIAK &
10.7%K%7.7% - SEEEEERYT - KAGEER
AMBREREBERHA BT EF N EF
FRIREEEEE  THEBLEESAR W&
EBERIDIN HBRERHYBEEHKRE - 28
MR REZREBERBINIEBHORE - 21t
BMERBE WSS 8 AT RBERESERHRE
FoptEEEmE - REKEE (BRI K
R&5H&RA 0 499,636,000E TR %E38.3% * 14
BB T NENS TN RBAR —ETLFH
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 &5 w5 4 (&)

BUSINESS ANALYSIS ZEoH
Sales Analysis by market TIHHE DM
" N
TABLE 1: COMPARISON OF SALES OF VARIOUS PRODUCTS
k—  REERHEENLR
Unit: US$'000 847 : FE7T
2007 2006 Change
18R
Regions ith & Amount % Amount % Amount %
Vietnam oA 159,290 50.1% 151,419 52.1% 7,871 5.2%
The PRC i 52,047 16.4% 44,751 15.4% 7,296 16.3%
Japan SN 47,492 15.0% 53,191 18.3% (5,699) -10.7%
ASEAN countries ~§: 34,794 11.0% 25,158 8.7% 9,636 38.3%
Other regions Efth 23,808 7.5% 16,176 5.5% 7,632 47.2%
Total FEe 317,431 100.0% 290,695 100.0% 26,736 9.2%
A %
1. Vietnam (—) BE%
The Vietnam market reported a 5.2% growth, or US$7,871,000 MEMSR ST LFNKRS2% &K

increase, in turnover for the year to US$159,290,000, accounting £7,871,000% 7T * # 159,290,000 7T

for 50.2% of the Group’s total turnover this year against last year's HBEW50.2%t — T NF52. 1%
K BRAREHEOBERBEARE - =
ZHRAERKBEHEEERAZ FRMISR
BREREAWREBDZ  WHANEXKE
5.2% c BRAM R CEMMELR - &
T -9BREMNEE -

52.1%. The moderate 5.2% growth showed that the market
growth had slowed down slightly when compared with other
countries, as a result of MSG sales softened after years of rapid
growth. However, other products such as caustic soda and
hydrochloric acid continued to grow steadily.




Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

1.

) BIR AR

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

EEER W

China

During the year, turnover from the China market reached
US$52,047,000, 16.4% or US$7,296,000 higher than in 2006,
attributable mainly to higher contribution from the modified starch
and MSG businesses. Boasting consistent and steady growth in
recent years, the China market has replaced Japan as the second
largest market of the Group.

Japan

In the first half of 2007, because of the weak international selling
price of lysine, the Group reduced lysine production in Vietnam
and shifted the capacity to produce GA. Since Japan is the main
lysine market of the Group, performance of the market was
inevitably affected. The Group resumed lysine production in the
second half year, however, with domestic demand increasing, the
Group made the strategic move of focusing on domestic sales in
Vietnam. As a result, sales in the Japan market maintained fiar
during the year. MSG sales, however, maintained stable growth.
The total turnover from the market for this year was
US$47,492,000, representing a decrease of US$5,699,000, or
approximately 10.7%, when compared with 2006.

ASEAN countries (other than Vietnam)

This market grew most remarkably, delivering an increase of
US$9,636,000 in turnover for the year as a result of substantial
growth in MSG and GA sales. Although the market only grew by
14% in the first half year, it performed brilliantly in the second
half year and therefore reported a remarkable 38.3% growth for
the entire year. The market is expected to sustain the growth
momentum in 2008.

(=)

(=)

(79)

7 [ 77 5

FEAFR BT S S WES2,047,000E T
LT RNEFEERI16.4% &8 A
7,296,000% 7T ° £ E/K KK B #IERH
MKBEMIEEBHKRE - AR AEFREBTE
SENRE  —TTEFPEmBEINA
AAKABEEE ZKME -

AAXi4%
ZEELF ¥ FHABEEBREERE
¥ EEUEREBARAE BLEEA
KL - AN BEBEZULOBAAEE -
AARTSEEARZINFE  THFHABR
BEREEZEAE  BEHAEEBEAZEXK
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Sales Analysis by Product EmEEDM
4 I\
TABLE 2: COMPARISON OF SALES IN VARIOUS REGIONS
R BBEHENLER
Unit: US$'000 B4z - FE7T
2007 2006 Change
%R
Regions & Amount % Amount % Amount %
MSG K45 204,682 64.4% 189,493 65.2% 15,189 8.0%
GA DR 36,925 11.6% 41,275 14.2% (4,350) -10.5%
Lysine FE 2L 20,798 6.6% 15,320 5.3% 5,478 35.8%
Modified Starch &1 1 25,916 8.2% 17,088 5.9% 8,828 51.7%
Specialty Chemicals % F{b 2 & 14,844 4.7% 12,608 4.3% 2,236 17.7%
Others Hib 14,266 4.5% 14,911 5.1% (645) -4.3%
Total FE 317,431 100.0% 290,695 100.0% 26,736 9.2%
A %
. MSGand GA (—) HtERAEEE
In 2007, sales of MSG, the Group’s core product, amounted to 2007 FEERTEMNERRBE R
US$204,682,000, an increase of 8% or US$15,189,000, a marked 15,189,000% 7T + ##204,682,000% 7T * A
improvement from 1.5% or US$2,882,000 in 2006. The strong RKHF8% ' th2006F 2 K¥FE1.5% « £58
growth was the result of strengthened export sales of the Vietnam 2,882,000k TEBEM#ES - FTEMIRK
plant in the second half year, especially ASEAN countries and Bl mMEINERE T DB T EE T
Europe. As the price of lysine started to pick up and the Group % BRIRERBEMBNT S EBEEN
partially shifted production capacity for GA in Vietnam back to KK -AEaREBRRERESEHLE
producing lysine, the turnover of GA decreased by US$4,350,000 5 BEBERBIERIEAEREER
to US$36,925,000, a drop of 10.5% when compared with 2006, MELERER Bt - FERARERT
but still notably higher than US$15,104,000 in 2005. 2R E - R4 4,350,000 7T « &%

%6 436,925,000% 5T ' tb2006F @
10.5% * B13tL2005F AL & ¥ 5
15,104,000 T HFF% ©
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Lysine

With the price of lysine persistently low in recent years, the Group
strategically reduced lysine production and used the freed capacity
to produce GA in 2006. However, as the price of lysine started to
pick up in the second half of 2007, the Group decided to resume
full production of lysine. As such, the turnover of lysine for the
year amounted to US$20,798,000, an increase of US$5,478,000
or 35.8% when compared with 2006. The product reported the
strongest growth in sales in Vietnam for the year. The Group
expects its lysine business to maintain steady growth in 2008.

Starch

Turnover of modified starches for the year amounted to
US$25,916,000, an increase of 51.7% or US$8,828,000 when
compared with last year’s. After three years of hard work, that
turnover of modified starch grew from US$9,830,000 in 2004 to
US$25,916,000 a record high. The proportion of turnover
contribution from modified starch to the Group’s total turnover
increased markedly from 4.4%, three years ago to 8.2% this year,
indicating that the product has become another core product of
the Group.

Specialty chemicals

Demand for hydrochloric acid and caustic soda in Vietnam has
grown as the country’s industries gradually develop. During the
year under review, their sales increased by US$2,236,000 to
US$14,844,000, representing an increase of 17.7%.

MAJOR RAW MATERIALS

The prices of most fuel and agricultural products all grew notably in
2007 and pushed up the procurement cost of major raw materials used
by the Group including cassava, liquid ammonia, industrial-grade salt
etc. The price of molasses slightly dropped thanks to increased supply
brought by strong harvest of major procurement sources and thus
increasing supply. As a result, it helped lower cost for the Group’s core
products such as MSG, GA and lysine.
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Molasses

During the year, the price of molasses dropped slightly, but those
of cassava and cassava starch products increased. The Group thus
adopted a raw material mix for production, an opposite of that in
2006, meaning it increased the usage of molasses and reduced
that of cassava starch to lower production cost. The strategy
effectively enhanced the gross profit of MSG, GA and lysine.
However, in 2008, the price of molasses is expected to follow that
of petroleum and other major raw materials on the up trend, which
will have bearing on the production costs of amino acid products
such as MSG, GA and lysine. The Group will continue adopting
flexible adjustments in raw material usage and production
techniques.

Cassava and Cassava Starch

The price of cassava increased in the 2007/2008 harvest season
because of the increase in export of cassava chip from Vietnam to
China and Korea and increasing demand in the Vietnam domestic
market. These factors kept the price of cassava on high level, even
though supply had actually surged.

To stabilize supply of cassava starch, the Group plans to increase
the daily production capacity of the starch production lines in Ve-
Yu Starch Factory in Vietnam from 100 tonnes to 150 tonnes. The
Group’s new plant in Ha Tinh province in northern central Vietnam
is currently under and is expected to commence operation by the
end of 2008, allowing the Group to secure additional cassava starch

supply.

Liquid Ammonia

The price of liquid ammonia was much higher in the first half of
2007 than in the second half, making the full year price slightly
higher than that in 2006. The Group expects the price of liquid
ammonia to continue to climb following surging energy price which
will put pressure on the Group’s production costs.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Cash flow and financial resources

During the year under review, the Group saw an increase in net
cash flow from operating activities and decreased bank borrowings
and overdraft by approximately US$27,840,000. As at 31 December
2007, the Group had bank deposits and cash amounting to
US$17,706,000, US$424,000 more than at the end of 2006. Total
bank loans and overdraft for the year decreased substantially by
38% from US$73,318,000 at the end of 2006 to US$45,478,000.
Current ratio improved to 2.28 from 1.63 in 2006, with short term
bank loans and overdraft down by about US$22,125,000. Net
gearing ratio decreased from 23% to 10.8%, indicating that the
Group had a sound financial structure. 78.3% of the bank loans
and overdraft were denominated in US dollars, and the rest were
in the Taiwan dollar and Renminbi, accounting for 13.3% and 8.4%
respectively of the total bank loans and overdraft. During the year,
the average loans interest rate was 6.4% and net finance cost
was US$4,364,000. The amount of net finance cost was equivalent
to 1.4% of the Group’s total turnover, down from 2.0% last year.
Of all bank loans and overdraft taken out, 34% were middle to
long term bank loans and 66% were short term bank loans and
overdraft. Gearing ratio (bank loans/shareholders interest) was
18%.

Capital expenditure

In 2007, the Group's total capital expenditure was US$12,680,000.
Investment in the new Ha Tinh starch plant in Vietnam, construction
of the third and fourth phases of the solid fertilizer plant and bio-
gas equipment in Ve-Yu Starch Factory and Phuoc Long Starch
Factory took up in all US$9,456,000. The Group plans to spend a
total of US$24,500,000 in capital expenditure in 2008, of which
US$10,500,000 will be used for funding projects continuing on
from 2007 and the balance US$14,000,000 will be injected into
the cassava residue recycling project in Phuoc Long Starch Factory
and raw materials development projects in Cambodia.

Exchange Rate

The Group’s two main production bases are in Vietnam and China
and local transactions are settled in their respective local currencies
while export sales are settled in US dollars. Operations in China
cater mainly to local demand with exports making up a very small
portion of total sales. In 2007, against the weak US dollars and
rising inflation in Vietnam, the Vietnam Dong appreciated slightly
by about 0.2%, a turn from the general downward trend it had

M ¥ E s
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been on in recent years. As for the Renminbi, it continued to
appreciate. Since the Group’s China operation mainly served
domestic needs and took out loans in US dollars, appreciation of
the Renminbi had not posed any adverse impact on the Group’s
finance. However, with the Central Bank of Vietnam having relaxed
the range of movement of the value of the Vietnamese Dong on a
trading day from 0.25% in early 2007 to 1% in early 2008 and
the Renminbi facing pressure to appreciate still further, the Group
will continue to monitor changes in relation to the two currencies.

IV. Dividend

Basic earnings per share for 2007 were 1.1 US cents. The Board
intends to adopt a dividend payout ratio of 50%, same as that in
first half of 2007. Earnings per share were estimated at 0.5530 US
cent. Since, for the first half of 2007, the Board paid an interim
dividend of 0.26202 US cent per share, it intends to pay a final
dividend of 0.29105 US cent per share, bringing the total final
dividend distribution amount for the year to US$4,432,000.

PROSPECTS

In 2007, the Vietnamese economy grew 8.4%. Foreign investment,
inward remittance and stock market are dynamically growing. Along
with the fast economic growth, prices of consumer goods and real estates
in the country also surged. The phenomena plus rising international oil
price and increasing price of agricultural products and raw materials,
Vietnam’s inflation rate in 2007 was as high as 12.6%, the highest in
the last decade. To combat inflation and stabilize consumer price, the
country’s Central Bank has adopted a tighter monetary policy since the
beginning of 2008, raised deposit provision rate and issued government
bonds, pushing up the interest rate of Vietnamese Dong to increase the
cost of borrowing of enterprises. It also relaxed the exchange rate
movement range between the US dollar and the Dong, becoming
challenges for all enterprises, domestic and foreign. Vietnam is the
Group's primary production base as well as its biggest market. With raw
materials, manufacturing, sales, management and transportation costs
in the market all on the rise, the Group sees challenges for its business
in the year to come. It is prepared to tackle them with vigilance. Expecting
raw materials and fuel cost to stand on high in 2008, the Group will
devote its utmost effort into lowering procurement cost while improving
production efficiency with the ultimate aim of maintaining a reasonable
profit. It will also seek to raise the selling prices of various products
gradually in 2008 to reflect the increased costs, under the principle of
not causing compromise to the Group’s market share.
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The Group has been actively exploring and boosting access to more
carbohydrate sources in the past few years, and expects to see the past
efforts paid off gradually in the future. i) Construction of the first phase
of Ha Tinh starch factory with a daily production capacity of 100 tonnes
will be completed in the third quarter of 2008. Its production capacity
will be expanded to 200 tonnes per day in the first quarter of 2009. ii)
Expansion of the Ve-Yu Starch Factory from 100 tonnes a day capacity
to 150 tonnes is in progress and will be completed in the fourth quarter
of 2008. iii) The Group had located suitable plantation area and found
right partners for the raw materials cultivation in Cambodia and signed
a memorandum of understanding in relation to the project in early 2008.
If the project proceeds smoothly, a joint venture will be set up in the first
half of 2008 to implement this investment project. On the aspect of
diversifying carbohydrate sources, the Group has made good progress
in tropical sugar beet cultivation. Another important carbohydrate source,
sweet sorghum, is also under test planting. We expect to see good result
in the near future.

As for MSG business, domestic sales in Vietnam is expected to grow
moderately, whereas a more substantial growth is expected for export
sales as a result of market expansion. As for the China market, with its
competitiveness in export weakening, the Group will thus strengthen
the domestic sales in the market, which remains intensely competitive in
the immediate future. In the long run, order will return to the market
with the stronger players prevailing and maintaining reasonable profit.

In the future, when the construction of new Ha Tinh starch factory and
expansion of the Ve-Yu Starch Factory are completed, and Cambodia’s
raw materials cultivation project launches, the Group will be able to
enjoy more steady supply of higher quality raw materials at more
competitive cost. This will help to greatly enhance the development and
profitability of the Group’s amino acids and starch businesses. At the
same time, the Group will actively explore opportunities of other
businesses in different market sections. Taking advantages of its long
established foundations and geographical proximity, the Group is
confident to enjoy a synergistic business effects and increase the Group’s
operational profits.

In conclusion, the Group expects to continue to face pressure from
persistently high raw material and fuel costs in the coming year. However,
it also sees 2008 as a critical year during which it will begin to reap fruits
of the efforts it made in the past few years. The Group is confident of its
ability to face the challenges ahead.
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EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had a total of 3,977 employees of
whom 3,045 were employed by Subsidiaries in Vietnam 923 by
subsidiaries in the PRC and 9 by the Taiwan Branch.

The Group’s employees are remunerated in accordance with prevailing
industry practices, and with reference to the financial performance of
the Group and performance of individual employees. Other fringe
benefits such as accommodation, meals, insurance, medical coverage
and provident fund are provided to employees to ensure staff loyalty
and the Group’s competitiveness. To enhance human resources quality
and the professional skills and management abilities of employees and
build localized workforces, the Group provides job rotation, internal and
external training courses on professional skills, languages, etc. to
employees to help boost their expertise and knowledge.
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At the heart of Vedan International’s business success is a
group of core products with widespread applications and
strong brand recognition, one of the Group*s most
important and well-guarded assets. Its renowned *Vedan®*
brand MSG, for example, is considered essential throughout
the food processing industries acrossAsia for its role in
enhancing the flavours of a range of foodstuffs, and enjoys
a huge and constantly growing market throughout
Vietnam, the PRC, ASEAN countries, Japan and the United
States.
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Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Executive Directors

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 65, our Chairman. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
graduated from Taichung Min Der Commercial Vocational High School.
Mr. YANG, Tou- Hsiung has approximately 45 years’ working experience
in the MSG industry and is one of the founders of the Taiwan Vedan
Group. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is responsible for formulating our overall
corporate strategy. Mr. YANG, Tou- Hsiung is also a director of Vietnam
Vedan and a director of Taiwan Vedan.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 53, an executive Director. Mr. YANG, Cheng had
approximately 32 years’ working experience in the MSG industry. Mr.
YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our business development
strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of Vietnam Vedan and Taiwan
Vedan. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a member of Taiwan MSG Manufacturing
Association. Mr. Yang holds an EMBA Degree from Xiamen University in
China in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 50, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry
in 1986 from Meiji University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 20 years’
working experience in the MSG industry and has been involved in the
development of the business operations of Vietnam Vedan since 1991.
During the last 17 years, Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang was involved in the
development and management of Vietnam Vedan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
is responsible for overseeing Group’'s operations and strategic
management.

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 44, an executive Director and the director of
Vietnam Vedan. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has approximately 12 years’
working experience in the MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is
responsible for coordinating our purchase activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-
Wen obtained a bachelor degree in mechanics in 1993 from Waseda
University, Japan.

Mr. WANG, Joel J., 66, the Chief Operating Officer of the Company
and the President of Vietnam Vedan. Mr. WANG obtained a master degree
in food science and technology from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology in 1968 and a master of science degree in chemical
engineering from Columbia University in 1971. Mr. WANG is responsible
for managing Group's business operations. Mr. WANG has approximately
37 years' working experience. Prior to joining us in 1991, Mr. WANG
worked with Taiwan Vedan where he was responsible for strategic
planning and foreign trade. Mr. WANG also has approximately 14 years’
experience in product and process research, production and engineering
in food and pharmaceutical industry in the U.S.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 54, a non-executive Director. Mr. HUANG is
a director of Vietnam Vedan and a vice president of Taiwan Vedan. Mr.
HUANG graduated from the department of accounting and statistics of
the National Taichung Commercial College, Taiwan in 1974. Mr. HUANG
has approximately 30 years’ experience in administration and finance.

Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng, 47, a non-executive Director. Mr. Chou is the
Supervisor of Vedan Enterprise Corporation. Mr. Chou was the director
and legal consultant of Wincome Technologies Company Limited and
he has over 15 years of experience in the legal industry. Mr. Chou obtained
his Bachelor of Law degree from Soochow University, Master of Law
degree from East China University and Doctorate of Law degree from
Peking University.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 46, an independent non-executive Director and a
member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHAO obtained a bachelor degree
in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from Soochow University,
Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law from the University of Houston
in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive partner of Jurist Law Offices, a law
firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO has approximately 16 years’ experience in his
practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 47, is an Independent Non-executive Director and
member of the Audit Committee of the Group. Mr. Ko has been the
executive partner of Weyong International & Co., Certified Public
Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. He graduated with a Bachelor of
Business Degree from Feng Chia University, Taiwan, and subsequently
obtained a Master of Science Degree in Accounting from the University
of Delaware, USA.

Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray, 48, is an independent non-executive director and
a member of the Audit Committee of the Group. Mr. Chen, holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree from the Eastern lllinois State
University, and a Bachelor Degree from the National Taiwan University.
Mr. Chen is presently the Managing Director of 1% & E (& i ZT A& 1D B BR
2 7] (Ray Wing Research and Investment Corporation). He has more
than 20 years of experience in securities business in Taiwan and was the
Vice Chairman and General Manager of Yuanta Core Pacific Capital
Management Corp. (JL KFEFH A B R % B MR A F]), the Chairman
of Concord Securities Investment & Consulting Corp. (FE M & %5 1% &
% 19 A BR 2 7)) and the Senior Vice President of Concord Securities
Corp. (EMEHKDERAQA).

Ms. CHUANG, Shu-Fen, 57, an independent non-executive Director and
a member of the Audit Committee. Ms. CHUANG graduated with a
bachelor degree from the Department of History of Tung Hai University.
Ms. CHUANG has been working in the advertising industry for
approximately 18 years. Ms. CHUANG served as the director of China
Airlines in Taiwan and the vice president of advertising for Cathay
Advertising before moving to her current position as the Vice Chairman
of Ogilvy & Mather China, and Chairman & CEO of Ogilvy & Mather
Northern China. Ms. CHUANG has resigned from the Board of directors
on 1 April 2008.
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Senior Executives

Mr. HSIEH, Jau-Hwang, 58, our Chief Financial Officer and vice
president of Vietnam Vedan. Mr. HSIEH graduated from the National
Cheng Kung University, major in accounting and finance. Mr. HSIEH is
responsible for the finance functions of the Group. Mr. HSIEH has
approximately 29 years of finance management and banking experience.
Mr. HSIEH worked for several financial institutions in Taiwan and Vietnam
including International Bank of Singapore and ABN AMRO Bank. Mr.
HSIEH was also a general manager of ChinFon Bank, Ho Chi Minh City
Branch. Prior to joining us, Mr. HSIEH worked as the President in Gia
Hen International Co., Ltd.

Mr. LIN, Chien-Pan, 59, the Vice President of Vietnam Vedan. Mr. LIN is
responsible for Sales and Marketing operations. Mr. LIN is also the Vice
Chairman of Orsan and is responsible for the business operations of
Orsan. Mr. LIN has 29 years’ experience in the MSG industry. Mr. LIN
joined us in April 1999. Prior to joining us, Mr. LIN had held various
senior management positions with various companies in Taiwan. Mr. LIN
served as the president at Summit Co., Ltd., a company engaged in
packing materials business from 1996 to 1999 and as vice president of
Signesia International Co., Ltd. from 1978 to 1988.

Mr. CHEN, Ping Hueli, 54, the Vice President of Vietnam Vedan. Mr.
CHEN graduated from Ming-Chi Institute of Technology in 1973. Mr.
CHEN is in charge of the production operations. He is also in charge of
engineering department of Vietnam Vedan. Mr. CHEN has 31 years’
experience in the profession of mechanical engineering.

Dr. CHEN, Hsien-Che, 59, is Vice President of Research and Development
at Vietnam Vedan. He obtained a PhD in Agricultural Chemistry from
the National Taiwan University in 1981. With 31 years working experience
in the food industry, specializing in grain processing and starch
technology. He started serving the Group as Consultant of starch product
development in 1991 and was appointed Vice President of R&D in 2004.

Mr. Yang, Wen-Hu, 47, chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen
Maotai. Mr Yang graduated from the Finance Faculty of National Taiwan
University and received his Master Degree from Waseda University in
Japan. Mr. Yang held the position of assistant in the External Trade
Department of Taiwan Vedan and had more than 15 years of experience
in international trade. Mr. Yang is responsible for the planning and
supervision of the operation strategy of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen
Maotai.
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Mr. YANG, Chang-Keng, 51, president of Shangdong Vedan Snowflake
Enterprise Co., Ltd. Mr YANG graduated from Taichung Commercial
College and is responsible for the overall administration and operation
of Shangdong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd. He has had 14 years
of work experience in the MSG and food additive. Before joining the
Group, Mr. YANG, Chang-Keng served as the manager of the product
development department in Tah Hsin Industrial Corporation and San-
Sun Hat & Caps Co., Ltd.

Mr. YANG, Tung, 37, Vice President of Shanghai Vedan Enterprise, is
responsible for the company’s financial and administrative work. Mr. Yang
obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration from the University
of Northwest in New York, USA. Mr. Yang joined Taiwan Vedan in 1995,
and had held various positions in Purchasing, Logistics and administration.

Mr. LIAO, Ruei-Hsing, 48, is the General Manager in charge of the
Group's China operations. Mr. Liao holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from Taiwan Cheng-Chi University. In the past 20 years,
he had held different senior executive positions in sales and management
in various multinational companies such as Coca-Cola, Pepsi-Cola, Sara
Lee and Bestfoods in Taiwan, the PRC, and the Philippines.

Mr. LIN, Yu, 49, Vice President of Shanghai Vedan Enterprise, is
responsible for sales and marketing planning. A graduate of Taipei
Jianguo Senior High School, Mr. Lin joined Taiwan Vedan in 1989 first as
a sales executive, and then was promoted to sales manager. He started
with Shanghai Vedan Foods in 1994, and made it to the position of Vice
President in Sales in June 2004. Mr. Lin has over 24 years of sales
management experience in the food industry.

Mr. LO Chi Man, 46, the company secretary of the Company. He is
responsible for the Group’s company secretarial and listing compliance
matters. Mr. Lo is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong, holds a
degree of Bachelor of Laws in the Peking University, the PRC and is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has
over 24 years' experience in finance, accounting and company secretarial
practice.
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Corporate Governance Practice

The Group commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and continuously reviews and improves our
corporate governance and internal controls practices. Set out below are
the principles of corporate governance as adopted by the Company
during the reporting year.

Distinctive Role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(IICEOII)

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board of
Directors in establishing and monitoring the implementation of strategies
and plans to create values for shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group’s
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

The Board

As of 31 December 2007, there were ten members on the Board, which
are the Chairman, the CEO, three other Executive Directors, two Non-
Executive Directors (“NED") and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“INEDs").

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgments. The Board considered
that each of the INEDs brings his /her own relevant expertise to the
Board and its deliberations.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the Group
nor has any relationship with other directors and confirmed their
independence to the Group.

The Board met regularly during the year and on ad hoc basis as required
by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set and review the
overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee the
achievement of the plans to enhance shareholders’ value. Daily
operational decisions are delegated to the Executive Directors. The Board
met four times during the year and the Directors’ attendance is shown
in the table on page 33. The NED and INEDs may take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense in carrying out their
functions.
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The Company appointed each of the Non-Executive directors during the
Annual General Meeting or by the Board for new appointment during
the year. The term of each of these appointments shall be expired up to
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and can offer for re-election
in the Annual General Meeting.

Audit Committee

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference as suggested under the Code of Best Practice set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and adopted with reference to “A Guide
for Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Audit Committee comprises Mr
CHAOQ, Pei-Hong, Ms. CHUANG, Shu-Fen and Mr KO, Jim-Chen, all
independent non-executive directors. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr Chao, Pei-Hong. Each member brings to the Committee
his valuable experience in reviewing financial statements and evaluating
significant control and financial issues of the Group who among
themselves posses a wealth of management experience in the accounting
profession, commercial and legal sectors. During the year, the Audit
Committee met 2 times.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:—

(i)  to review the half-year and annual financial statements before they
are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on, the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditors;

(iii)  to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards;

(iv)  to review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls and
risk management systems;

(v)  toreview the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practice;

(vi)  to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function; and

(vii) to review the terms and conditions of connected transactions of
the Group.
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The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2007 prior to recommending them to
the Board for approval.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee, in January 2006.
Its terms of reference are summarized as follows:

(i) To make recommendations with respect to the remuneration of
the Executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company for approval by the Board;

(i) To review the remuneration package and recommend salaries,
bonuses, including the incentive awards for Directors and the senior
management; and

(iii)  To administer and make determinations with regard to the
Company’s share option scheme.

The remuneration committee annually sets out its recommendation on
the remuneration package of the Executive Directors. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2007, the remuneration committee has
reviewed and recommended to the Board the salaries and bonuses of
the Executive Directors and the senior management.

In order to attract, retain, and motivate executives and key employees
serving for the Group, the Company has adopted a share option scheme
in 2003. Such incentive schemes enable the eligible persons to obtain
an ownership interest in the Company and thus to rewards to the
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in note 29 to
the accounts and details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme are set out
in the Report of Director and note 15 to the accounts.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee in April 2008 to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, structure, size and composition of the Board
to ensure fair and transparent procedures for the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors to the Board. As the nomination committee
was formed in 2008, it did not hold any meeting during 2007.
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Looking Forward

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary actions
to ensure the compliance with the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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Meetings Attendance e
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
EEY ERZEEEY FHEES
Number of Meetings BERH (4) (2) (1)
Executive directors HITES
Yang, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) TSR (£ /%) 4 N/A 35 A 1
Yang, Cheng 5 1E 3 N/A 35 A N/AiE F
Yang, Kun-Hsiang (CEO) T IR EE (TTBAREL) 4 2 N/AZ 3 F
Yang, Chen-Wen BRX 4 N/A 3 N/AZ 3 F
Wang, Joel J. TER 4 1 N/AZ 13 F
Non-executive director FHITES
Huang, Ching-Jung Edas 4 N/A 35 A N/A 3E F
Chou, Szu-cheng A5z 4 N/A 32 A N/A 35
Independent non-executivedirectors BUYKHITES
Chao, Pei-Hong ISR 2 1
Chuang, Shu-Fen TR 2 0 1
Ko, Jim-Chen Tl rE 2 1
Independence Information BILHERR

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive ~ 1Ri% E R AIZE3.1315 » AR REF S B IEH
directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of  {TEHWEREBILIME - NRBRAEBLIFH
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-  1TEEHBEILH ©

executive directors are independent.
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Compliance with the Code of Best Practice and the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices of the Listing Rules

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
Code of Best Practice, as set out in the then Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, throughout the accounting period covered by the annual report.
The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Corporate Governance
Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the year 2007.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers

The Company had adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the directors
(the "Code”). Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed
that all directors have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Code.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay an aggregate of approximately
US$295,000 to the external auditors for their services including audit
and non-audit services.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for Accounts

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the responsibilities
of the external auditors to the shareholders are set out on pages 48 and
49.
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and the
audited accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2007.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based amino
acids, food additive products and cassava starch based industrial products.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 9
to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities
during the year under review.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December, 2007 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 53.

An interim dividend of 0.26202 US cents (2.0437 HK cents) per share
was declared and paid to the shareholders during the year under review.
The directors recommend the declaration and payment of a final dividend
of 0.29105 US cents (2.2702 HK cents) per share for the year ended 31
December, 2007. Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be paid
in cash on or about 19 June 2008 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 6 June 2008.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 15 to the accounts.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December, 2007, the Company’s share premium reserve of
approximately US$194,098,000 (subject to the Cayman Companies Law
and the articles of association of the Company) and retained earnings
of approximately US$14,811,000 were available for distribution to the
Company’s shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December, 2007, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 16 to the accounts.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in Note 7 to the accounts.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 34% of the Group’s consolidated turnover. In addition,
the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 57 %
of the Group’s consolidated purchases for the year. Sales to the Group’s
largest customer and purchases from the Group's largest supplier
accounted for less than 13% and 25% of the Group’s consolidated sales
and consolidated purchases respectively.

At no time during the year, did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company, which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, were an
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers of the
Company.

Directors

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Yang, Tou-Hsiung
Yang, Cheng
Yang, Kun-Hsiang
Yang, Chen-Wen
Wang, Joel J.

Non-executive Directors

Huang, Ching-Jung
Chou, Sze-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chao, Pei-Hong

Chuang, Shu-Fen (resigned on 1 April 2008)
Ko, Jim-Chen

Chen, Joen-Ray (appointed on 1 April 2008)

According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, Mr
Yang, Chen-Wen, Mr. Wang, Joel J., Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung and Mr. Ko,
Jim-Chen will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. According to Article 86(3) of the Company’s
articles of association, Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray, who was appointed by the
board of directors of the Company as an independent non-executive
Director on 1 April 2008, will hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting and shall then by eligible for re-election. All such
Directors being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 26 to 29.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December, 2007, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"),
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
the Directors were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:—

EENKRY - HElkkh REFZERRRE

REZBZLEFT_A=+—B ARASEER
REITHRABRARBHEEEEER (E&
REnkBE R ([F5RAE G EXVER)
ZBtn ARG RERET - BEQRERES
B GOIEXVERE T R FESD RAMBARE R
ERBERZMBER DT ([BRAT]) 2 e Kok
B (BEREEZRBEEIEREXESER
RBBERRER ZERIRR)  HORERT
ABHEAEIRPIEI2EREFE 2 ERLMA
ZRBRKRE  HORBEEBHERXZMERRD
A& EMARA((ETRAND) Az L ARIE
FETESFRXHZRETABANE AR B RBER
Frzigsm ORRIT © —

Interests in shares

Rz S

Number of
ordinary shares

in which interested
(other than under

Number of
ordinary

shares in which
interested under
physically settled
equity derivatives

Percentage of
issued shares

equity derivatives) ZEBEYWHEHEMRA  Total number of of the Company
Name RERR2ESBEREE MEIAERER ordinary shares {EARATE&IT
®E (BRASBTE T ARSI ZERHE ZEREY ROBEDL

(Note 2)
(B &E2)
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung 169,730,196 4,500,000 174,230,196 11.44%
TS ERE S A (Note 1)
(P 3E1)

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen - 4,500,000 4,500,000 0.30%
HIRXE A&
Mr. YANG, Cheng — 4,500,000 4,500,000 0.30%
BIESEE
Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang - 4,500,000 4,500,000 0.30%
RS A
Mr. WANG, Joel J. 750,000 - 750,000 0.05%
TER LA
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung 200,000 - 200,000 0.01%
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong 500,000 - 500,000 0.03%
HEREE
Ms. CHUANG, Shu-Fen 500,000 - 500,000 0.03%

RS £
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Notes: MizE
1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung’s interest in shares are held in the following 1. BRI E AT F DR A R s ¢
capacities:—
Number of ordinary
shares through
physically settled
Number of equity derivatives ***
ordinary shares EBREVMEEREITE
Capacity 54 LERHE IEREZEERHE ***
Beneficial owner ERfEAA - 4,500,000 **
Interest of company controlled RIGERE L AT 2 169,730,196 * =
by him YNGR Fop 2
* Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is entitled to exercise or control the exercise @ BB EEEITESKZEFTEKing
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International International Limited([King
Limited (“King International”) and King International is the holder Internationall) BB =52 —KIRZEHE - M
of such 169,730,196 shares. King International 7%5%#£169,730, 196 A% i%
MZEHEBA °
**  Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is interested in 4,500,000 shares of the *% 5 SR S A AR IR B X A B B AR AT R AR A T
Company pursuant to the options granted to him on 13 June, 2003 BN =TT =F A+ = BERNERE
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The exercise price under 74,500,000 AR A2 RIAR (5 #E A #E 2 ©
the options is HK$0.801 and the exercise period is 13 June, 2004 to ZERRENITEER0.801 BT - 1712
12 June, 2008. HH-_ZTWFAAT=AE_ZTTN\F
ANATZ=HBIE-
***  These derivatives are unlisted. ok ZEMETAARIEET o

2. Various interests of the Directors and chief executives of the Company 2. RAREEREEITBRABBBEEMEERADT

pursuant to physically settled equity derivatives are through share options ATABEZ S EERDEBASE BN RE
granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The exercise price ERERE BRI 2 BRI S - S RARE
under the options is HK$0.801 and the exercise period is 13 June 2004 to ZATR(E/R0.801 BT @ ITREIB =T TWFEN

12 June 2008. A+=BEZ=TZFTN\FA+=HIL -



Report of the Directors (continued) EZE&i{RE (&)

—ZTELFFH Annual Report 2007

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December, 2007, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Share Option Schemes

On 13 June, 2003, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme were approved by shareholders under which the
Directors may, at their discretion, offer any employee (including any
executive director of the Company) of the Group, options to subscribe
for shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
in the two schemes.

Options to subscribe for 29,770,000 shares had been granted to the
Directors and employees of the Group on 13 June, 2003 under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. No further options can be, or have been,
issued under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme from 27 June, 2003, the
date of listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange. No options have
been granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31
December, 2007.

BREXHBEN  RZETLFT_A=+—
B BMEEFHARARRTRABRRRAK
HAEEBOEE (& B &5 LB GG FEXVER)
ZBtn RO REFTHEERRELEA Q)
RIRFEH LA E GO SEXVERET7 k8D F/ALE A
RENBRA 2 EMERIAR (BRESRE
EH LB RPIBRBIESREFI B RRE 21
@mMRA) + HREE S MR E RHIE3521FA
AEABRGEX iz BERMAZ EEIAR + 3L
(OREBELMRAUMB LT RAREFETESRRS
Z AR ST RIZA G & A8 X A N Bk X2 P 2 M 2R SO%

AN

=

RE iR tEST &

“EE=FRAT=R BRREWBEERAFE
PRSI ERT BI R B R AR B EREAREE
Bt EFEARBERASRENEMNES (BFEE
AARRATES) REHBRE  REZMERE
PriEst Bl IR R IR RBA DR NB -

—ET=FA+=H " BEREHEXAHSKA
ERESERNEERAEEREEE L AIRE
29,770,000/ & 15 2 BEfeHE - B —ZEE=F /XA
—t+tH EMRORERFA EmZA) 8 - BAA
INEEAR YR B XA & B BT IS AR A T 81 3% 1 BB AR
o oMN-_BERLEFE+—F=+—H  HBEREH
RAFREREEIRGT 8I3X  EARE -
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Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December, 2007 which LA N 2R 45 & /R A BT & B pl B A et 2l [ AR A 7
have been granted to the Directors of the Company under the Pre-IPO  &F &L MR - ZTZE+F+-_A=+—HHAK

Share Option Scheme are as follows: Tz BRERS -
Number of options
BREHA

Held as at

31 December,

Held as at Granted Exercised 2007

Directors/ 1 January, 2007 during  duringthe R=-EE+#E Exercise

Employees R=FZLE  the period period +=A price Date of grant Exercise period
Bz E8 —-B-B&%E BARH BRfTfE =+-BFE T8 R A T8
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung 4,500,000 - = 4,500,000 HK$0.801 13 June, 2003 13 June, 2004 to
Rt E 0801 —ZTT=F 12 June, 2008
ANAT=R ZESEESAT=AE
“EENFRATZH
Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 HK$0.801 13 June, 2003 13 June, 2004 to
BRXEE 0801  —ETT=F 12 June, 2008
NATZRA ZEENFSATZAE
“ZEENERATZH
Mr. YANG, Cheng 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 HK$0.801 13 June, 2003 13 June, 2004 to
BELE 08018  —ZTE=F 12 June, 2008
NATZRA ZEEEESAT=AE
“ZZN\FRATZH
Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang 4,500,000 - — 4,500,000 HK$0.801 13 June, 2003 13 June, 2004 to
HEEEE 080187L  —ZTET=F 12 June, 2008

~ATZA “FEMFAATZAZ
“FENFAATCA
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. Yang, Cheng, Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang,
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen and Mr. Wang, Joel J. has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years. Such
service agreements may continue thereafter unless terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party following
the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung, Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong and Ms. Chuang,
Shu-Fen has entered into a service agreement with the Company for an
initial term of one year. Such service agreements may continue thereafter
unless terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party
following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any time
thereafter.

Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term commencing on 31 May 2006 (“Commencement
Date”) and shall continue until the year falling on the third year from
the Commencement Date or the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held in the third year from the Commencement Date, whichever is
earlier or otherwise terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in
writing thereof by either party to the other.

Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen has not entered into service contract with the Company,
and has no fixed term of service with the Company but will be subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Except for the service contracts detailed above, no director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

EERBEEY
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HEmE SRR RERRBERTIDR—EAZ
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EBEEECBARRRIMIRBEH - FHH—
ZTRFAA=1T—R ((AHBH]) ER% 1
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Connected Transactions

For the year ended 31 December, 2007, the Company entered into the
following transactions with one of its controlling shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan Vedan"”), a connected person of
the Company, which constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Company subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

FAER 5
BEZZT+F+_A=+—HILEFE ' AR 7
HEA—IRRREREEALT  AEKRSRER
MERAR ([AEKRF]) ET RS MxE
REGBRABT EMABNEI4AZHRRAER
EZRHERERS :

Note Us$'000
M FET
A.  Sale of goods to mEaERAEEEm
Taiwan Vedan (i) 2,584
B.  Technological support fee paid ) BB R B T2 AR 1D
to Tung Hai Fermentation Industrial BRDE R A EKRST
Co. Ltd. and Taiwan Vedan TR ES (if) 2,653
Notes: it

(i) On 14 December 2005, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement in respect of the sales of certain GA (acronym as “glutamic
acid”), MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch-
based industrial products by the Group to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries
(other than members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for a term of
three years from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2008 (“Taiwan Sales
Agreement”). The parties entered into a supplemental agreement on 4
January 2007 to increase the cap under the Taiwan Sales Agreement to
the revised cap of US$4,100,000 for the three financial years ended 31
December 2006, 2007 and 2008. The Directors believe that the sale of
goods to the Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales Agreement
will generate additional income to the Group.

(i) On 14 December 2005, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement in respect of the provision of certain technological support
services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of three years
from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2008 (“Technology Support
Agreement”). The parties entered into a supplemental agreement on 4
January 2007 to increase the cap under the Technology Support Agreement
to the revised cap of US$2,800,000 for the three financial years ended 31
December 2006, 2007 and 2008. The Directors believe that the
technological support from the Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group'’s
future business developments.

1. NZZETRF+-A+EA - ARREGEKRY
RAKERSERARAEMBAR ( REEKE
AERIN) ([BEKAKE]) HEETAR
B R RBM TRERMA] L B—FF
RNE-A—BE_ZZN\F+-_A=+—H81"
RP=%F ([8EHEERH=] ) - BFIHNIR=F
SLE— MBI - i & EIHER
B LRENEBE_TTANF  —TFLFR
“ERENFF A=+ AL=AFRFEZL
£5T £BR4,100,0005%7C - E=AERESEH
EmmRaERAREHERR  #RAKEE
REINEA -

RZBZRAEF+=-A+WAE ' XARARRIES
FEIRFT R A VR SR E AR ER AR TR
BREMI L B=EEAF—A—HZE=
TENF+ZA=+—HIt ' BH=F ( [&ff
S EHHE] ) c SIHNAR_ZETLF—AMA
RIM T haE - AR R =2 RGNS
HE_ZT A F _ZTZLFRZFTNF+=
A=+ A=AV RFEZLEET LR
2,800,000 7T - EFMHEEHAERAEEES
BE®E  BEAEEZARREBEREAH -
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For the year ended 31 December, 2007, the subsidiaries of the Company
entered into various transactions with Shandong Xue Hua Bio-chemical
Co., Ltd. (“Xue Hua"), which constituted continuing connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view
that such transactions will provide cost benefits to the Group for its GA
and MSG manufacturing businesses.

On 22 December, 2005, Ordino Investments Pte Ltd (“Ordino”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and Xue Hua entered into a joint
venture contract to set up a joint venture company, Shandong Vedan
Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“JV Company”) in the PRC. Upon the
establishment of the JV Company, the JV Company becomes a 70% non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Xue Hua, which holds
30% of the equity interest in the JV Company, becomes a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Set out below is a table summarising the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions with Xue Hua as at 31 December 2007 which
are subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

HE-TRLE+-A=+—HILFE  AAT
ZHBARRURS LN IRAARAT
(BREDTTETRS - BREEEERS (B
FRLETRAD - EFBA - KERDHAAE
B0 7 S TR R M A A R AR A -

R_ZETRF+_A_+=H  ARRZEWE
A& Ordino Investments Pte Ltd ([Ordinol) 25
BRI B &g - EP BRI E S A RILRKRST
EREBM(IEERA) - KAZEEQRE  6&A
RIBAARIEET0%ERS I EWNBAR]
SR EALRFIB0%M4E - RIE ETRAIE
14A% - KRR RBZAEANL ©

TERELHE—_ZTTLF+_A=+—HESTE
2B EFTRAEI14AZRRR - AERET
R EREZ T ERRIFTERERS

Note Us$'000
B FET
C.  Supply of certain raw materials EIERAE RN al e
by Xue Hua to the JV Company ETEME (i) 12,707

Notes:

(i) On 28 December, 2005, Ordino, Xue Hua and the JV Company entered
into an agreement (“Raw Materials Purchase Agreement”) in respect of
the supply of certain raw materials (“Raw Materials”) by Xue Hua to the JV
Company. The Raw Materials Purchase Agreement has taken effect from
the date of approval by the relevant authority in the PRC on 14 December
2005 for a period of 3 years.

(i) RZZTTRF+=-A=1+/\H ' Ordino * BEK
BEARREBASERE L REMES TR
(MR EET S —E (B R SRE RE]) © R
MERBRZER ST AF A +WTA (A
FEEEMBEELIEZR) ENAH=F -
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Under the Raw Materials Purchase Agreement, Xue Hua will guarantee
to the JV Company that in the event of the GA products produced by
the JV Company utilising the Raw Materials reaching 25,000 tonnes per
annum, the lower of (a) the average profit before tax for each tonne of
such GA products will be not less than RMB450; or (b) the annual profit
before tax for such GA products produced will reach RMB11,470,000,
and Xue Hua will reimburse the shortfall to the JV Company, up to a
maximum term of 5 years and an amount of RMB71,420,000 (which
includes the service fees payable by Xue Hua to Ordino under the
Technology Services Agreement) or RMB60,570,000 (which excludes the
service fees payable under the Technology Services Agreement).

Pursuant to the Raw Materials Purchase Agreement, Xue Hua is entitled
to claim reasonable damages from the JV Company in case of the JV
Company sells products to the Group at a price level lower than the
then average selling price available from Xue Hua of a comparable
product.

The annual aggregate amount of the Raw Materials to be purchased by
the JV Company from Xue Hua will not exceed the maximum cap of
RMB120,000,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2008.

BERMEHRERZ - SEEREERFELE
R WEERBRAZERMEIFTEE 2 GAE M
FEHE25,00008 - BJ(CA NERIKE)(a) T 19 T HE
ZEGAE M Z BB AN A TS ER AR K450
TL ¢ BR(b)FTAE EE 2 7% 55 GAEE fh 2 R BR B A& F1) 18
EHARY11,470,0007T © BRISEHREER
RFHEZR  SZAYATE S2EAARE
71,420,0007T (2 15 55 1E AR 15 B2 417 AR 75 167 o FE 1<F
OrdinoZ iR 7% &)k A R # 60,570,000 T (N2 1
BRI T AR TS ok PB4 2 BRTG &) ©

REBEMERERZ  WELRARMAKEHE
Em MEBERSEREERERIFHE
B RISTEARABRE RAREERE -

REE-_ZBEENF+_A=1+—HBIL=AEKSE
EEF  GEQARNASERERMBZZ2FEE
FEE T 2B AR 120,000,0007TH LR ©
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The directors, including the independent non-executive directors, of the ~ANRARIEE (BIEB Y IFRNITES) BHBHM LA
Company have reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the A RIFEMER H & WHER :
Company and confirmed that:

(a)  the transactions were: (@) “%ERS
(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business; (i) M—MREBEEBPET
(i)  conducted on normal commercial terms; which were no less (i) BTBEREBYE=EKR5H2—KE
favourable than those available to or from independent third FIERET R
parties; and
(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them (i) WREBEEMEZREHREARTFSEAT
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of BB = 2 ERETT o

the shareholders as a whole;

(b)  the aggregate amount for each of the above transactions has not (b)) LI RER S 7 BEWEBBBEAMET
exceeded the relevant caps disclosed in previous announcements. WE2BBLR -

Pre-emptive Rights BhiEE®E

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s AR RAAZGZERMAIFAS RS AFIWEELE
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige ~ E#ERE © BRA QG HI AR AR REEH
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing  f&f5 °

shareholders.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares

So far as was known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
as at 31 December, 2007, other than the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company as disclosed above, the
following persons had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRER R B2

BEFNEZRARBRZESTHRABRM  R-F
ZLF+-A=1+—H BLXAREEZHA
RAEHITRABWERSORBIN - L TALR
AR AR T EAREEZ R ARG
BIEXVEDF 2 R 5370 B 2 (R AR AR A B FE Y
REIORR - HINARRAREE L HE D
E3B6IEMFEERMIERIORE

Number of ordinary shares

in which interested
(other than under
equity derivatives)

Percentage of
issued shares
of the Company

Name RERG2EBEREE EERATE
£ (BRAPTE T EBRSD) BITROBE DL
Billion Power Limited (“Billion Power") 460,237,609 30.45%
(Note 1)
(BFEE)
Taiwan Vedan 460,237,609 30.45%
BEKS (Note 1)
(BEE")
King International Limited 169,730,196 11.15%
(“King International”) (Note 2)
(MF5E2)
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited 127,297,646 8.36%
(“Concord Worldwide") (Note 3)
(FF3E3)
High Capital Investments Limited 127,297,646 8.36%
("High Capital”) (Note 4)
(=)
Notes: PFEE -
1. Taiwan Vedan is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than 1. B IR+ RT3k 4% H 47 8 Billion Power BB

one third of the voting power of Billion Power and is therefore taken to be
interested in these 460,237,609 shares held by Billion Power.

2. The capacity of King International in holding the 169,730,196 shares was
as beneficial owner.

3. The capacity of Concord Worldwide in holding the 127,297,646 shares
was as beneficial owner.

4. The capacity of High Capital in holding the 127,297,646 shares was as
beneficial owner.

=D 2 —HIRERE - AR R AR ABIlion
PowerFff 1 & 7%460,237,6098% B D 2 #E 25 o

2. King International DA BHBFEAZHEE
169,730,196i& A& {5 ©

3. Concord Worldwide 3 A BB A FHDEHA
127,297 ,646/%B& (5 °

4.  High Capital PUEZEAAENEE
127,297 ,646/%BZ {5 °
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, no other person (not being a Director or
chief executives of the Company) who had any interests or short positions
in shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange, under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group or held any option in respect
of such capital.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Four Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang,
Cheng, Yang, Kun-Hsiang and Yang, Chen-Wen, were also directors of
the Group’s controlling shareholder, Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs.
Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng, Yang, Kun-Hsiang and Yang, Chen-
Wen indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18
percent., and 8.24 percent. interest in Taiwan Vedan, respectively and
they were therefore considered as having an interest in Taiwan Vedan
under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the Product Portfolio.

Since Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiang and Yang, Cheng are both responsible
only for the overall strategic planning and the business development of
the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily operations of the
Group are managed by Messrs. Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Chen-Wan and
Wang, Joel J. together with an independent management team, the
Directors are of the view that the management and the operational
functions of the Group are independent of and separate from those of
other members of the Taiwan Vedan Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent non-
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would on
a regular basis review the business and operational results of the Group
to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s business operations in respect of
the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the basis that it is
independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of Taiwan Vedan.
Auditors

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Yang, Kun-Hsiang
Director and Chief Executive Officer

15 April 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥& 3 # Bl Bl 3R &

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

TR 5% B K 3 Gt B S A AT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vedan
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 113, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2007,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any person for the content of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

BUR S EIRR (2R) ARQBRR
(RESHEEMHA L HERAAF)

AL ERED A TR (3 M1)) BB RIIBNFS0R
ZE13ERABR FER) GRLA ([ERE])
REFTRAR (A TEREIEE]) ORaMB®RE
ERERER_TTLFT _A=t+—"BZERE
ERBERRARBEREBER BEZALFERN
REMER HAEDRERRREARERE

R URETESHABRME R EMKERE

ESMMBRRARKBHEE
BERRERRAERBEEEGITMASRMANE
BB HREER RIRBEE QR GROIR R ERE
RELEBEMAFHINBAEFREMBERE - &
AEERERN Bk ERRHATMNA T
55 IS MR ARRI O AR EES] - AEM IR
TP AR IGF AR M G B E A SRR + &
BNEMEENGHEE  MREATEHAE
Z TG ©

BRHEBEE

BANEERRERMNERZ - YRSV HRE
EHER - WERBERRRE BRI AN
EREEME S - KA TERABRENARRAIE
I EMALTE FAEEREE -

BAERBEEEGHMOGREMNEBEER
HEITEZ - BLBEREREMETERRE - I
BREIRATEY LA EREUSFMHEREREE
TEEEFAERERRML -



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) Y& #Z E R E (&)

—ZTELFFH Annual Report 2007

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 April 2008
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2007 —ZEZtHF+=-F=+—H

2007 2006
Note us$'000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FEx
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights o b {5 A 4 6 6,320 6,038
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE 7 197,848 211,688
Intangible assets ERARE 8 17,527 18,127
Held-to-maturity financial assets REZRIHzeREE 11 3,295 3,361
224,990 239,214
Current assets mBEE
Trade receivables JE W B 5 BR 3K 12 42,063 38,150
Inventories FE 13 56,170 65,520
Prepayments and other receivables TE A FRIB K b JE WG IA 6,905 6,312
Tax recoverable A Ug [ A 18 6 980
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBEEEY 14 17,706 17,282
122,850 128,244
Total assets BEBE 347,840 367,458
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to RATIREREA
the Company’s equity holders FEAE B AR R A
Share capital & 25 15 15,228 15,228
Reserves ]
— Proposed final dividend —REAHRKRE 16, 25 4,432 2,432
— Others —HAfh 16 233,471 222,602
253,131 240,262
Minority interest DHRR R 4,585 3,722
Total equity AR 257,716 243,984

The notes on pages 56 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

As at 31 December 2007 —ZEZtHF+-F=+—H

2007 2006
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
Long-term bank borrowings RAEARITE K 18 15,621 21,336
Deferred income tax RIEFTISFR 19 10,544 11,449
Long-term payable to a related party ENEBEEATZRHFKIE  33(0) 9,393 11,023
Post-employment obligations BBERE 728 870
36,286 44,678
Current liabilities mBAE
Trade payables FETE SRR 17 13,215 17,116
Accruals and other payables FEST B A & E b FE S RUE 10,279 9,376
Due to a related party EEREEALRE 33(c) 301 258
Bank overdraft — unsecured RITIE S — EIKW 382 =
Short-term bank borrowings RERRITE K
- Secured —BHEMA 18 - 4,421
— Unsecured — A 18 18,969 36,399
Current portion of long-term bank REASRITIEE MRV EAZB 1
borrowings 18 10,506 11,162
Taxation payable FET R IR 186 64
53,838 78,796
Total liabilities afERsE 90,124 123,474
Total equity and liabilities EmRkBEARE 347,840 367,458
Net current assets MBEESFE 69,012 49,448
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEAR 294,002 288,662
YANG, Tou-Hsiung WANG, Joel J
BEEE TER
Director Director
EE EFE

The notes on pages 56 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet BEEER

As at 31 December 2007 —ZEZtHF+=-F=+—H

2007 2006
Note US$°000 US$'000
B FER FETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FrRBEE )
Investment in subsidiaries, at cost T A RIR A (R A) 9 170,390 170,390
Long-term loan to a subsidiary BT —HERBARZ
EHER 9 10,500 -
Intangible assets EmREE 8 8,664 9,873
189,554 180,263
Current assets MENE E
Due from subsidiaries JE s B I A m] 3KIE 10 51,895 60,525
Prepayments and other receivables TR AT R IE B E Ath fE YRR IR 341 94
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEY 14 1,087 825
53,323 61,444
Total assets EEME 242,877 241,707
Capital and reserves attributable to AR BBHERH A
the Company’s equity holders FEAE B 7R K A
Share capital [ 15 15,228 15,228
Reserves (]
— Proposed final dividend —BEABRE 16, 25 4,432 2,432
— Others — HAh 16 204,487 202,577
Total equity R 224,147 220,237
LIABILITIES BE
Non-current liability ERBEE
Long-term payable to a related party FESEREA T
2 REAFRIE 33(0) 9,393 11,023
Current liabilities mEAE
Accruals and other payables JEETE A N EL b JRE 5 R IR 3,046 1,835
Short-term bank borrowings — unsecured MEERITEE — EER 18 6,291 8,612
9,337 10,447
Total liabilities BfERE 18,730 21,470
Total equity and liabilities EmkBERE 242,877 241,707
Net current assets MENEEFE 43,986 50,997
Total assets less current liabilities BREERTEBEE 233,540 231,260
YANG, Tou-Hsiung WANG, Joel J
BEEE TEH
Director Director
EF EE

The notes on pages 56 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE-ZZ+t&+_-_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
Note us$'000 Us$'000
B FER FET
Turnover EER 20 317,431 290,695
Cost of sales SHER A 21 (256,845) (237,222)
Gross profit EF 60,586 53,473
Other gains — net H a5 5 58 20 2,413 2,188
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX 21 (16,907) (16,058)
Administrative expenses THF X 21 (20,990) (19,010)
Operating profit # i 2R 25,102 20,593
Finance costs & AR 22 (4,364) (5,831)
Profit before income tax RETFT15 %1 Al 2 A 20,738 14,762
Income tax expense Frig i 2 23 (4,878) (3,827)
Profit for the year N FE A F 15,860 10,935
Attributable to: A8 B EM
— equity holders of the Company —ARaRERE A 16,856 10,915
— minority shareholder —LHRFE R (996) 20
15,860 10,935
Earnings per share for profit attributable to 4 AN A & i 42
the equity holders of the Company BB AR RATH
during the year BRRET
(expressed in US cents per share) (AR EAET)
Basic earnings per share BREARAF 26 1.1 0.72
Diluted earnings per share FREE AR 26 1.10 0.72
Dividends (in US$'000) R B (F%T) 25 8,422 5,458

The notes on pages 56 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE-ZZ+t&+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AREREREE AER
Share Share Exchange Merger  Retained  Minority
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings interest Total
BRA  ROEE EXRE A0HEF RKREEF R @it
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$ 000 Us$'000
S TEn TEn TEn TEn Sy S
At 1 January 2006 —2E E—-R—H 15,228 47,358 4,170 79,994 86,305 3,600 236,655
Profit for the year AEERF = - - - 10,915 20 10,935
Dividends 8! = = - - (4,734) - (4,734)
Exchange translation EHZER
differences - - 1,026 - - 102 1,128
At 31 December 2006 and ~ —ZEEAF A
1 January 2007 =+—-Hk
RZZTLEF
—A—H 15,228 47,358 5,196 79,994 92,486 3,722 243,984
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERF/(E8) - - - = 16,856 (996) 15,860
Dividends BRE = = = = (6,422) - (6,422)
Contribution from a —RHBRRK
minority shareholder SERELHE
of a subsidiary - - - - - 1,560 1,560
Exchange translation EH =R
differences - - 2,435 - - 299 2,734
At 31 December 2007 S
+=-A=1+—-H 15,228 47,358 7,631 79,994 102,920 4,585 257,716

The notes on pages 56 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ZE8BRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE-ZZ+t&+_-_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
Note us$'000 Us$'000
M E FER FET
Cash flows from operating activities KEXBRSRE
Cash generated from operations XGELENRS 30 55,676 30,126
Interest paid AT A (3.880) (5,103)
Income taxes paid B FTSH (4,687) (4,122)
Net cash generated from operating activities #X& ¥MEAMNIRE R AFEE 47,109 20,901
Cash flows from investing activities KREETHELENRS
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  WEEW % - BE & &R E 7 (12,266) (21,997)
Purchase of intangibles WIS m & E 8 (414) =
Purchase of land use rights W B + b (50 PR 4 - (394)
Interest received from held-to-maturity BlHEEE 2
financial assets ERMEEZNE 314 251
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment RIS A 30 681 23
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEMAREFE (11,685) (22,117)
Cash flows from financing activities MESTHEENHE SRS
Dividends paid AR A (6,422) (4,734)
Contribution from a minority shareholder DR R & 1,560 3,600
Net change in short-term bank borrowings EHIRITEEFEH (21,851) (781)
New long-term bank borrowings raised FERBRTEE 4,792 2,792
Repayment of long-term bank borrowings — EiE REIRITEE (11,163) (8,346)
Repayment of long-term payable to B3R & RS R AD
Vedan Enterprise Corporation ARAF ([BEKRT])
(“Taiwan Vedan”) B R EIR R (2,145) (2,123)
Net cash used in financing activities BB SRR FHE (35,229) (9,592)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBEEEEY
cash equivalents #in, CORd) F58 195 (10,808)
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and BHeRBReEEYNER
cash equivalents (&) /A (153) 103
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —A— AR LB EEEY 17,282 27,987
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December +—-A=+—H®NEE L
ReEEY 17,324 17,282
Analysis of balance of cash and cash ReRBEeSEMNERD N
equivalents:
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 17,706 17,282
Bank overdrafts RITEX 14 (382) =
17,324 17,282

The notes on pages 56 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

HNES6EVI3EMMETIBRES M B HRRN—EH -



E R BB (/%) EFR A 7] Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Ei ¥ 3R & K{zT

1  General information 1. —Bw&EH
Vedan International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its ERATEIRR (35EAR) BIR AR ([AAR) RE
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell WEAR (5B [AEE]) FERHEESE
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and BRERmMANE - EEEMRARERH T
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified starch, ¥AMm - BEECIRY BERER K
glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"), soda, acid and 1B~ AT~ BE RERE} o IR BIBR MY E il
beverages. The products are sold to food distributors, international ETUEEREMEBRER PEAREM
trading companies, and manufacturers of foods, paper, textiles, (THRE]) - BAR - 88 R — RN
and chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries, XORMDHEE BRES 28 - LERR
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and m AT BN EEREER °

several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the RARAB/—RERAERFHESTMAZZBR
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century Yard, AR HEMEE 2 it & Century
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, George Town P.O. Box 2681 GT, Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
Grand Cayman, British West Indies. George Town P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand

Cayman, British West Indies ©

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of KRR EBRRBERSME—Lhi
Hong Kong Limited. fiL o

These consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars BREATIBEN - I FLRE M IS WERIAET
(US$), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial 2% - WEREVBERERENR=_ZEZ/N\F
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors MATHEBREZESSHE -

on 15 April 2008.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2. EEEHBXREE
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these RRELEREVBREEAZEEZEGTHR
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies REFIT - BREEFIBAEN - FERE
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless ERERRIIBE2MESE -

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 mEEE
The consolidated financial statements of Vedan International PRAHEIRR (130%) B IR A B @V 4R & BT
(Holdings) Limited have been prepared in accordance with R THIRIR B S B WA E A AR
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The 4o ERE WIS R IARIERE R ANE
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under Bl Am &

the historical cost convention.



—ZTELFFH Annual Report 2007 CE::)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) Bt #§3R &R KizE (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. FEEBUIREBE (8)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 HFEEE (F)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with BTG E B BM ISR EER ISR
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting AEEERAETEENSHHEE R
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its RRHZEREEERAASEN G
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting BUR B A6 - 4R S ISR
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement KPE R E SR HIRE R
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates B - B EERR R B EE 7B
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are FEAMREE o

disclosed in Note 4.

(a)  The following new standards, amendment to standards (@) U THER - ERIZ ST R
and interpretation are mandatory for financial year BEREZ-_FELFF-—H=
ended 31 December 2007 +—HIER B FEE HI T o
. HKAS 1 Amendment — Presentation of Financial . BB ERE 15 (&

Statements — Capital Disclosures; &5]) — M mMERZES] —
BEARE
. HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures; 0 BB SR EXERF 7%

—ERTA: KE

e HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 — Applying the Restatement o BB BRUBHRERE
Approach under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting ZEg) REBEETR
in Hyperinflationary Economies; EAEBE%HAIE29

HFTREBMHAEERIRG
B2 B
. HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 — Scope of HKFRS 2; . B8 (BBRMGERERE

ZE®) —REF8HR
BRU B MEERNE25R

ZEE
. HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 — Reassessment of Embedded . 55 (BB MERERE
Derivatives; and ZEE) —ZEFER
SHMARITETER
&
. HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 — Interim Financial Reporting . B (BB ERERE
and Impairment. ZEg) —REFE105

BB 75 3R RORE ©

The adoption of the above standards, amendment and N 2RI - (BET R BB
interpretations did not have any significant financial RERNEBEREANY B
impact to the Group. The adoption of HKAS 1 Z MBS ENFE IR
(Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has resulted in additional (F&f&a]) R BB RE 28
disclosures on capital disclosures and sensitivity analysis FBIRLAEBBELERBEAR
on financial risks. B 58 K2 B 755 [ B BURK T 0 AT Y

BIMNE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The Group has not early adopted the following new/
revised standards or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The directors are
currently assessing the impact on their adoption.

. HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of financial
statements (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009);

o HKAS 23 (Revised) — Borrowing Costs (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009);

. HKAS 27 (Revised) — Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009);

3 HKFRS 2 Amendment — Share-based Payment
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations (effective
from 1 January 2009);

. HKFRS 3 (Revised) — Business Combinations
(effective for business combinations with
acquisition date on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 July 2009);

MR R M= ()

2. FESBREE @)
2.1 mEEE (@)

(b)

AEEDRPRMAUATEEM
1B W R A 2 #r7] R IERT 4
Al - EF B ATIEFAER
MTURBAIERZEE -

. EBEHEUEIN(E
B3 — B REELT
(R=FFAF—A—H
52 14 B 6 0 42 S A0
)

. BB ERIFE 235 (&K
B —BERAE (K=
TZHFE-—A—Bxz
BHENTFEHME
B

o EEGFERFE27H (K
BR]) — &8 KB
HBER MR _FTAFLH
— B RABNEE
HMER)

o  EBAEAMBEWELERF2NR
(BRTAS) — PARR 0 2 &
B 3R 2 55 B R A R it
HIR=ZFTNF—H—
BAR)

o  BAMBEEERFIN
(&1E7]) — %566t (&
RARKBEARAR _—F
ZhFLA—RAszik
Ft6 2 & 8 F 2 & 3
Mz &2 EBAH)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. FEEBUIREBE (8)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 HFEEE (F)
(b) (continued) b) (&)

HKFRS 8 — Operating Segments (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009);

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11, HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 March 2007);

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12, Services Concession
Arrangements (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2008);

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes
(effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2008); and

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14, HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008).

BB E LR F
—EEIHMMR_FTN
F-RA—H®zEREB
ZFEHRER ;

&8 (BBEHBEHE2E
ZEE) REE1H
BB RELERE25%
—SEMRETERHRS
(R=—ZEZT+F=F—H
s B FEHRE
£

75 (BRUBRERE
ZEg) —REF12%
R ERLH (R=F
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R BB (/%) EFR A 7] Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) Bt #53R&R KizE (&)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31 December.

(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill (Note 2.6). If the cost of acquisition is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

2.3

(@)  Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (Note 2.7). The results of subsidiaries
are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

(b)  Transactions and minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external
to the Group. Disposals to minority interests result in
gains and losses for the Group that are recorded in
the consolidated income statement. Purchases from
minority interests result in goodwill, being the
difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other
economic environments.
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m R BB (/%) EFR A 7] Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in US
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation difference on non-
monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale
are included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. FEEBUIREBE (8)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued) 24 HNEBmE (&)
(c)  Group companies (0 HEEA]
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BB 2R (B
BEEMARKARREEZL
BRAZER)  EXENMH
ARRIBILA T T ER B2

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;
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as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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m R BB (/%) EFR A 7] Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-in-
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged in the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Properties 20-50 years
- Plant and machinery 10-20 years
- Office equipment and

other fixed assets 5-8 years
- Motor Vehicles 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within other (losses)/gains — net, in the income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure on
buildings and plant where the construction work has not
been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress until they are completed and ready
for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary
or business at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
Group allocates goodwill to each business segment in
each country in which it operates (Note 2.7).

Trademarks and brand names

Acquired trademarks and brand names are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks and brand names have a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks and brand names over their estimated
useful lives of 10 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised
over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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ﬂ R BB (/%) EFR A 7] Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
been available for use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and held-to-maturity. The
classification depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are classified as trade and other receivables in the
balance sheet (Note 2.10).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
If the Group were to sell other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-
for-sale. Held-to-maturity financial assets are included
in non-current assets, except for those with maturities
less than 12 months from the balance sheet date,
which are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial
assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The Group assesses at each balance
sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Spare parts and consumables are included within inventories
and stated at cost, using the weighted average method.
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R BB (/%) EFR A 7] Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10

2.12

2.13

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement within selling and marketing costs. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against selling and marketing costs in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown in current
liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14

2.15

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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n R BB (/%) EFR A 7] Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

()

Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined
contribution plans, the assets of which are generally
held in independently administered funds. The Group’s
contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes are expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet
date are discounted to present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) Bt #§3R &R KizE (&)

FESEEREE (8)
2.17 WEER

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2.

2.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, return and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as described below.
The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have
been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when a Group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted that products and full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.

Sales are recorded based on the price specified in the
sales contracts, net of returns at the time of sale and
sales rebates.

(b)  Sales of electricity

Sale of electricity is recognised based on units of
electricity sold as recorded by meters during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17

2.18

Revenue recognition (continued)
(©)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

(d)  Technology support income

The Group renders technology support pursuant to a
technology support agreement. Revenue is recognised
when the conditions attaching to the technology
support agreement have been fulfilled.

(e)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors wherever appropriate.
Dividend proposed or declared after the balance sheet date
are disclosed as a post balance sheet event and are not
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
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3

Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose itself to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Fund management is carried out by a Treasury Department
that reports to the Chief Finance Officer. Risk management
decisions are made in monthly fund management meetings,
which include members of senior management.

(@)  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Vietnam Dong against US dollars.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange rate risk.

At 31 December 2007, if Vietnam Dong had
weakened/strengthened by 1% against the US
dollars with all other variable held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have been
US$220,000 (2006: US$176,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of Vietnam Dong-
denominated trade receivables and cash and
bank balances, and foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of Vietnam Dong-
denominated trade payables.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(iiy  Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets apart from bank balance, the Group's
income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
The Group has not hedged its cash flow interest-
rate risk.

At 31 December 2007, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have been
US$288,000 (2006: US$340,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions. For banks and
financial institutions, the Group only uses banks and
financial institutions with good reputation. For
customers, the Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group has a risk control
department to assess the credit quality of the customer,
taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are
set based on internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the credit committee and approved
by the Board of Directors. The utilisation of credit limit
is regularly monitored.
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3.1

(c)
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Financial risk management (continued) 3. UMBREKREE(E)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEEEE (@&
Liquidity risk (0 mEEZERE
Prudent liquidity risk management includes HEHZRDEACRREEDE
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of BFERARZHE  URBERE
funding through an adequate amount of committed EmEERMENEHNEEER
credit facilities. The Treasury Department aims at B  BeHRNERBEFEA
maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed WA RGEEREEHFESNE
credit lines available. alE o
The table below analyses the Group’s and the THREEEEBEE K EH
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity HATHEIMASEE RAAQ
groupings based on the remaining period at the AIREBER B 2B Ea
balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The B RREPREZCERE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HARTIRRESRE - ARITER
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 ZHEITEXR R+ @A
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact AR Bz R A S R HBRE 45
of discounting is not significant. o
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1year and2years and5 years 5 years
—-FR -FEME WEERF BBRE
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TET TEx TEx TET
Group N3]
At 31 December 2007 RZZELE+-A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 29,475 7,081 8,540 =
Trade payables EfT B 5 8RN 13,215 - - -
Long-term payable to EREEEATZ
a related party REFE 2,145 2,145 6,435 2,144
At 31 December 2006 RZZERET-_A=1+—H
Bank borrowings RITRHE 51,982 10,506 10,830 -
Trade payables BB S8R 17,116 = = =
Long-term payable to ENEBEALZ
a related party RHATE 2,145 2,145 6,435 4,289
Company KAT
At 31 December 2007 RZZZLE+-_A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 6,291 - - -
Long-term payable to ENERAEALY
a related party RHANE 2,145 2,145 6,435 2,144
At 31 December 2006 RZEE ETZA=1T—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 8,612 = = =
Long-term payable to ENEBEALZ
a related party REFHB 2,145 2,145 6,435 4,289
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MR R M= ()

Financial risk management (continued) 3. HMBEREER(E)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 GERRER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEEEREES Z BEAREAEE
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern REEE - ARG RE R & AE
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for wREA ARG - AREREEZ
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital BABEBARDERKAR 28 °
structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BT HFNAREAGERE - ANEET
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, RERARRN TIRRZIREESHE - MR
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. REEBERNNBEITHRM
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. AEEREEAGLHERERERE
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by equity N o ZLLERWGGRE ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ'\
holders’ equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. RRETRARR A AEmTE
Total borrowings include non-current borrowings and current BIERBIEIERBER R ENE K °
borrowings.
During 2007, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged RZZTTLF  AEEZRKH-T
from 2006, was to maintain a minimal gearing ratio. The TRFRANEER B T#RFE
gearing ratios at 31 December 2006 and 2007 were as EBBLEERZEKT - RZEEXS
follows: FRZZZTLFT_A=T—HBZE&
EBFELENT
Group
rEH
2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000
FER FET
Total borrowings (note 18) BiE R (fizE18) 45,096 73,318
Equity holders’ equity %ﬁnﬁfﬁ}\Z%ﬁ{i 253,131 240,262
Gearing ratio BEARBLX 18% 31%

3.3

The decrease in the gearing ratio during 2007 resulted
primarily from repayment of bank borrowings.

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are a reasonable approximation of
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

3.3
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4  Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities
are discussed below.

(@)  Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.7. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates.

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, land use right and
intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations and valuations require
the use of judgement and estimates.

(c)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets are assessed by management
annually. The assessment requires the use of
judgement and estimates.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(d)

Current income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the provision for
taxation. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which
such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred taxation assets and taxation in the periods
in which such estimate is changed.
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5 Segmental analysis 5. SEpaH

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business DEBERIAR R B EBE KM= S EmE

and geographical segments. Business segment information is o XZBOBEMASETEZRFR - RE

chosen as the primary reporting format because this is more TERFEG D HEARE B K= R BARA

relevant to the Group in making operating and financial decisions. FEEMEERAK

(a) Business segment (a) HEXKDH
The Group has been operating in one single business AEFECEE X5 - RERIHE
segment, i.e. the manufacture and sale of fermentation- BRERMANE - AlbERRAER
based food additives, biochemical products and cassava MES @ BIEECIEBY  B&EsE -
starch-based industrial products including modified starch, URAE - W4T ~ BE R ARA} o

glucose syrup, MSG, soda, acid and beverages.

(b) Geographical segment (b) HESDE
In presenting information on the basis of geographical LA [ 53 50 2 B KL - o EPUE LA
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical BPFEMES D - HHEERER
presence of customers. Segment assets and capital FXXAIAEEMEHE D o
expenditures are based on the geographical location of the
assets.
(i)  Segment revenue ()  oEfME
2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEn FET
Vietnam el 159,290 151,419
The PRC llE| 52,047 44,751
Japan =] 47,492 53,191
Taiwan = 9,264 10,607
ASEAN member countries RERR
(other than Vietnam) (BRI 34,794 25,158
Other regions H b & 14,544 5,569

317,431 290,695
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)

(b) Geographical segment (continued)

MR R M= ()

5  SERS T (48)
(b) HEDE ()

(i) Capital expenditures (i) BAXFEZ
2007 2006
Us$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam [24E] 9,870 8,811
The PRC H 2,810 13,540
Taiwan =) | B 2
12,680 22,391
Capital expenditures are allocated based on where the BB THARIR & E P i i
assets are located. DB e
Capital expenditures comprise additions of land use BRI BIEE T AR -
rights, property, plant and equipment and intangible M BERRERBFEEE
assets, including additions resulting from acquisitions HARE @ BIERREBLEE
through business combinations. TRERARE °
(iii)  Total assets (i) BEAAE
2007 2006
us$'000 USs$'000
FER FET
Vietnam . e 280,961 308,925
The PRC i 65,139 56,728
Hong Kong BB 550 763
Taiwan =9 1,126 173
Singapore EIimIlIEed 64 869
347,840 367,458

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets

are located.

BERETREBEEMEIN

D e
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6 Land use rights 6. LTih{ERH#
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating REFER T RAENERIESEHON
lease payments and their net book values are analysed as follows: TRHER  BEREFESTAT :
2007 2006
us$'000 USs$'000
FEx F=T
Held outside Hong Kong FEBBAINGE
Leases of between 10 and 50 years HMOBTEERTF 6,320 6,038
2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEn F=T
Opening H3 9] 6,038 5,583
Additions b )i - 394
Exchange difference I H =5 417 186
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease EEHRABHERD
payment B (135) (125)
6,320 6,038
In respect of the Group’s land use rights, Mao Tai Foods (Xiamen) RAEBN T HERAENS - =FARF
Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Maotai”), Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd B REEHNHBAREXERM (EM) B
(“Shanghai Vedan”) and Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise RAE ([EFXKR]) « EBRSEEER
Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Snowflake"), subsidiaries established and AEl ([ EB®RS]D) RIIRSXEEEERA
are operating in the PRC, have been granted the rights to use the AI([LREIE]) EEERAERRTAH
land by the relevant authority for 50 years, which expires in 2042, ATENTHERE SRR _ZTM=
2055 and 2056 respectively. Bank borrowings in 2006 were secured FCZERRAFERZZTRAFER R
on certain land use rights for the carrying amount of US$388,000 T NF 7 RITEE AR E(E388,000% T
(Note 34) and the pledge was released during the year. R E T i (E BEEAIRIR (FI5E34) - M

ERERERAFERELR
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MR R M= ()

7. Y% BERRE

Office
equipment
and other
fixed assets
Construction Plant and WAE Motor
in progress  Properties  machinery  RERHM vehicles Total
RIE nE BE BEEE RE i
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
TEn S TEn Txn Txn TEn
At 1 January 2006 —2%:%-A-H
Cost KA 11,629 76,174 318,783 30,054 1,778 444,418
Accumulated depreciation 2RENE - (28503 (167,178)  (26,532) (6,018)  (228.231)
Net book amount REFE 11,629 47,671 151,605 3,522 1,760 216,187
Year ended 31 December 2006 HZE-BEAE
TZAZ+-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFS 11,629 47,671 151,605 3,522 1,760 216,187
Exchange differences EHER - 290 319 12 10 631
Additions NE 8,070 2,017 10,858 526 526 21,997
Transfer EEE (18,703) 3,073 13,444 2,169 17 -
Disposals HE - - ®) (48) (25) (81)
Depreciation il - (3,766) (21,942) (812) (526) (27,046)
Closing net book amount EREEFH 996 49,285 154,276 5,369 1,762 211,688
At 31 December 2006 ZEEAE+ZA=1-H
Cost KA 996 81,593 343,495 32,687 8,069 466,840
Accumulated depreciation ZENE - (32,308)  (189,219) (27,318) (6,307)  (255,152)
Net book amount FRFE 99 49,285 154,276 5,369 1,762 211,688
Year ended 31 December 2007 HZE-ZZtE
+ZA=t-HLFE
Opening net book amount BNERFE 99 49,285 154,276 5,369 1,762 211,688
Exchange differences EFZE 8 704 1,260 23 27 2,022
Additions NE 9,365 278 1,751 58 814 12,266
Transfer 2 (2,752) 745 1,881 126 - -
Disposals HE = (1 (28) (22) (27) (78)
Depreciation & - (3,894) (22,802) (831) (523) (28,050)
Closing net book amount BREMFE 7617 47117 136,338 4723 2,053 197,848
At 31 December 2007 ZE2LF+TZAZT-H
Cost KA 71,617 83,127 347,239 30,621 8,518 477,122
Accumulated depreciation 2RENE - (360100 (210,901)  (25898) (6,465  (279.274)
Net book amount RHRFE 71,617 47117 136,338 4723 2,053 197,848
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7  Property, plant and equipment (continued) 7. YE - BERRE (@)
Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group are pledged REBENETYE - BERZEEER
as security for the Group's short-term and long-term bank WREAEENEHAERARTEED
borrowings as follows: TS &
2007 2006
Us$'000 US$'000
FEx F=T
Net book value of pledged property, plantand B EIFWE  BE &
equipment (Note 34) BAERRE A (5E34) 25,417 41,520
Depreciation expense of US$27,648,000 (2006: US$26,244,000) FE X H27,648,000% T (Z BT/ EF ¢
has been charged in cost of sales, US$40,000 (2006: US$42,000) 26,244,000%7T) * 40,000 7T (ZFZF X
in selling and distribution expenses and US$362,000 (2006: F : 42,0003 7T) F1362,000%F% 7T (ZEZ R
US$760,000) in administrative expenses respectively. £ : 760,000 70) BEDBIREERA - 8

ERDHAIARITHEAS PR -

8 Intangible assets 8. HWMIEAE
Group Company
F5H KAH
Goodwill Software Brand name Trademarks Total Trademarks
BE B# m BE &3t BE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEL TET TEn Txn Txn Txn

At 1 January 2006 N 8,159 - - 11,082 19,241 11,082
Transfer from goodwill EEaEE (1,142) - 1142 = = =
Exchange differences ERER 209 - - - 209 -
Amortisation for the year FREH - - (114) (1,209) (1,323) (1,209)
At 31 December 2006 2T, F+-A=t-H 7,226 - 1,028 9,873 18,127 9,873
At 1 January 2007 Tt F-f—H 7,226 - 1,028 9,873 18,127 9,873
Additions NE - 414 - - 414 -
Exchange differences ERZER 448 - - - 448 -
Amortisation for the year FREH = (139) (114) (1,209) (1,462) (1,209)
At 31 December 2007 ZEE+E+ZA=1-H 7,674 275 914 8,664 17,527 8,664

Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. B ATHRAX -
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Intangible assets (continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGUs") identified according to country of operation and business
segment.

HH & E (8)

AR ER R
AEERNEEEMERREEBER - &
Fraipl 2 AR S BN EEHE

The PRC Vietnam
FE i
MSG

packaging MSG
&R  packaging Total
AR LR A5 B g4 &st
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FEx
At 31 December 2007 —EELF+=_A=+—H 6,944 730 7,674
At 31 December 2006 —EERFEF+ZA=+—H 6,496 730 7,226

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management. Cash flows
beyond the budget period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

Gross margin 13.3% - 14.4%
Growth rate 0% —3.0%
Discount rate 10.4%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU
within the business segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations for the market development.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant segments.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of goodwill is
based would not cause the carrying amounts to exceed its
recoverable amounts.

REBR BN 2AIREESRHREAEER
A RERHEERNE R B iEZ WA
HEMRSRBETERN BHBEEHZ
BeRnE8EMATIMEMERRES -

RUGEEREEZEERR :

EF 13.3%-14.4%
b B 0.0%-3.0%
iR = 10.4%

ZEBRANDIMEZ D BASRIR S

EREDREBEEARERAEEMSERZ
BEHMEETREEME - AFREIIHR
RIETHE - WRIRBRE S B2 ERR

BEEERE  BENTKESBEMREN
TERINEMAEAEEH TS ERE
EEBBEAKESE -
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9 Investments in subsidiaries 9. HMBEATIRSE
2007 2006
us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FE E RS (GRRAN) 170,390 170,390
Long-term loan to a subsidiary BT—RNBRRRAER

(Note) (B 3E) 10,500 =
180,890 170,390

Note: Mt & -

The loan-term loan granted to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free for
the period from 1 August 2007 to 31 December 2008 and interest will be
charged at Singapore Interbank Offered Rate for the period from 1 January
2009 to 31 July 2010, the date of maturity. The directors regard the long-
term loan as part of the net investment in the subsidiary as at 31 December

2007.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

BT - HMBAR 2 RAEFTVEER R -F
Z+ENA-BAE"ZTE\F+_A=+—HH
Mes  RR-ZENF-A-—HE_T—ZF
tA=+—H EIHR) BRI RTTF SR
BERGFE -R_FFLF+_A=+—H8 &=
BEHMEFRSNMBRAR ZREFEZ —a0

TIHRR_FTELF+T_A=1t—B®=E

2007: EHBAT :
Place/country of Principal activities Particulars of
incorporation and place of operation issued share capital Interest
Name B AL TEXKR BT held
A1 L= E EEBE BRAFE FERER
Directly held:
BEFRE :
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Investment holding Us$100 100%
Islands (“BVI") in Hong Kong Ordinary shares
RBRAHE EBRARELR 100X T EBR
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding Us$100 100%
KBREUHS in Hong Kong Ordinary shares
EBRBREER 100X TEAR
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9 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 9. HMBATERE (&)
Place/country of Principal activities Particulars of
incorporation and place of operation issued share capital Interest
Name B AL TEXKR BT held
A1 L= E EEBE BRAFE FERER
Indirectly held:
&S
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding $$106,067,921 100%
I in Singapore Ordinary shares
EF IR EER 106,067,921 M3 7
ERR
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding $$34,944,929 100%
G in Singapore Ordinary shares
ER IR EER 34,944,929%1 I T
Lk
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacture and sale of US$118,300,000 100%
Corporation Limited il fermentation-based food Legal capital
AT () R B R AR additives and biochemical 118,300,000 75
products and cassava starch- EERA

based industrial products
including MSG, GA, modified
starch, glucose syrup, soda and
acid in Vietnam and for export
EHREERHEEM R M INE
ECERRAERDISER
BERE  RAE  CIRH
BERE M RELHERD

Mao Tai Foods (Xiamen) PRC Packaging and sale of MSG US$20,270,000 100%
Co., Ltd. F and beverages in the PRC Registered capital
EZERm(EF) BRAR EREEKRHERE AR 20,270,000% 7t
AR
Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Packaging and sale of MSG US$1,838,282 100%
el in Vietnam Legal capital
EBREEERHEERS 1,838,282% T

EEBA
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9 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 9. HMBATHRE (&)
Place/country of Principal activities Particulars of
incorporation and place of operation issued share capital Interest
Name B AL TEEBER &7 held
A1 L= E EEBE BRAFE FEER

Indirectly held: (continued)
F#fRA (&)

Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC Manufacture and sale of MSG US$12,000,000 70%
Enterprise Co., Ltd. L2 in the PRC Registered capital
WRECEXERAF ERBEEERHERS 12,000,000 7T
(MLREFE]) & A
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise PRC Packaging and sale of MSG US$9,800,000 100%
Co. Ltd. H in the PRC Registered capital
EERACEBBRAR ETEEERHEERS 9,800,000% T
Gl
Veyu Enterprise Co., Ltd Vietnam Manufacture and sale of cassava US$2,300,000 100%
il starch-based industrial products Legal capital
in Vietnam and for export 2,300,000% T
W EEERHEARE RS ETERA
TXEMTHEELA
Xiamen Darong Import & PRC Trading of cassava starch-based US$254,000 100%
Export Trade Co., Ltd. HE industrial products in the PRC Registered capital
EFIARELNES ETEEEAZRNIEER 254,000% T

BRAF & A
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1

12

Due from subsidiaries 10.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Held-to-maturity financial assets 11.

Included in held-to-maturity financial assets is a 5-year construction
bond issued by Dong Nai Province People’s Committee of Vietnam
on 30 March 2005. The bond earns annual interest of 8% and is
redeemable at the end of the 5-year term.

MR R M= ()

FE Wi Bft 8 23 B R IR

ERMBRARRBEABERRRS - B
ERRER -

=

RAEZEIHZzEeREE
HAEZRINHP 2B ESL BIEHDong Nai
Province People’s Committee of Vietnamm
EERFA=THBERNRFRERS
% o BHFEFERRAMESE - WAIN HFH
B ] o

Trade receivables 12. FEWEE SRR
2007 2006
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Trade receivables from third parties EWE=FESER 41,724 37,787

Trade receivables from related parties B EREALTE SRR

(Note 33(c)) (M$5E33(c) 339 363
42,063 38,150

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on delivery
to 120 days and the ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as
follows:

EEESERNEERARERNFREE120
R MEREZERFNRESTAT ¢

2007 2006

Us$'000 Us$'000

FTEx TET

Current BN &R 22,838 22,634
30-90 days 30E90K 18,890 14,917
91-180 days 91E 180K 242 458
181-365 days 181E 365K 31 141
Over 365 days 365K A L 62 -

42,063 38,150
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12 Trade receivables (continued) 12. FEWEE SARRR ()
As at 31 December 2007, trade receivables of US$3,701,000 (2006: RZZET+tF+_A=+—HB 285
US$9,165,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a 3,701,000% 7T (ZZZ /54 ¢ 9,165,000
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent T0) Z FEWE SR KB B BB RRE - A
history of default. The ageing analysis of these past due but not REETOHMEEREHEZBIRER -
impaired receivables is as follows: % % B HR B I SRR (B 2 TR IE 2 BRER 5 AT 40
I
Group
rEH

2007 2006

Us$000 Us$'000

FExn FET

Current to 3 months BNHAZE =& A 3,656 9,137

3 — 6 months =EAZENEA 45 28

3,701 9,165
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are REEZEWESERZREBENANIE

denominated in the following currencies: BT -

2007 2006

Us$000 Us$'000

FEx F=T

Vietnam Dong A 26,109 22,148

US dollar ET 11,731 13,678

PRC Renminbi R AR 4,194 2,324

Others Efth 29 =

42,063 38,150

13 Inventories 13. #E

2007 2006

us$'000 Us$'000

FER FET

Spare parts and consumables T HREFESR 3,967 2,975

Raw materials R 24,602 28,992

Work-in-progress £ 8 3,818 3,781

Finished products P 23,783 29,772

56,170 65,520
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14 Cash and cash equivalents 14. RERIREEEY
Bank balances totaling US$16,599,000 as at 31 December 2007 RZBZTLF+A=1+—8 ' RITEH
(2006: US$16,437,000) were placed with banks in the PRC and % #16,599,000% L ( —ZEZTRF :
Vietnam. The remittance of these funds out of the PRC and Vietnam 16,437,000 7T) B 17 A A B X i /g A9 6
is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and 7o ZEEERTEREREAZTH
Vietnamese governments. K2 A BT /9 SNEE B B FE BE o
The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the AEERe KRB EEMRUATER S
following currencies: B :
Group Company
rEH PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FER F=ET FER FETT
Vietnam Dong g 6,470 5,276 - -
US dollar ETT 6,394 7,267 983 713
PRC Renminbi AR 4,738 4,627 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT 40 65 40 65
New Taiwan dollar e 64 47 64 47
17,706 17,282 1,087 825
The effective interest rate of the bank overdraft as at 31 December RZBEZLF+_A=+—HZRITEL
2007 was 6.25%. B FIER6.25% ©
15 Share capital 15. &
Authorised ordinary shares
EEEBER
Par value Number of
us$ shares US$'000
HEXETRT KR4 EE FEx
At 31 December 2006 and —EERFT_A=FT—HRK
at 31 December 2007 —EEt+tF+-_A=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
EEEBR
Par value Number of
us$ shares US$'000
HEXT RHEER FEx
At 31 December 2006 and —EERFTA=FT—HRK
at 31 December 2007 2Tt F+A=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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Share capital (continued)

On 13 June 2003, a share option scheme and a pre-IPO share option
plan were approved pursuant to a written resolution of the
Company.

Under the share option scheme, the board of directors may at its
discretion offer options to any directors, employees, business
partners or their trustees of the Group which entitle them to
subscribe for shares in aggregate not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue from time to time. These options have duration of ten years
from the date of grant, but shall lapse where the grantee ceases
to be employed by the Company or its subsidiaries. No share
options were granted by the Company under the share option
scheme during the current and previous years.

Under the pre-IPO share option plan (“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”), the board of directors may at its discretion offer options
to any directors or employees of the Group and its subsidiaries
which entitle them to subscribe for shares of the Company. On 13
June 2003, 24,500,000 options and 5,270,000 options were
granted to directors of the Company and employees of the Group,
respectively, under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. These options
are exercisable in accordance with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme commencing on 13 June 2004 and up to 12 June
2008.

11,270,000 share options were exercised in September 2004. There
was no other exercise of share options for the current and previous
years. No share options (2006: 500,000) were cancelled during
the year. Pre-IPO share options outstanding as at 31 December
2007 are as follows:

15.

—ZTELFFH Annual Report 2007

MR M= (&)

Bz (48)

R-ZZFZE=FXA+T=B  A2FIE2RE
EHRZRRMEBRETERERAAE
BB RE A At & o

REBRESS  EF@RBERAEE
EHES EE  EBBHAWENR
AR LBEE BT REENRBESHLT
BB TEEEITRM10%HN KN - ZEH
BENERBERHE AR RH+
FEBRZEARATNBIERARAK
HIfB AR AR - RABERNFERBE
I M8 AR R B AR AT B IR (T RB A A -

BIEERAAERAERETE ([HERA
FERAERETE])  ESEARIEBR
REBEREWBAREMNEZESSEES KD
B BT REEMNREARQRRS ©
—ET-FXA+=H EFEREENX
ARERIIBRIESSDAAATES
MAEBEERT24,500,0001) &
5,270,000 B #E - ZERREE-ZTT
NEASA+=Z=AZE_FEZTNFA+=H
B TR I B R A B & IR T BE I A AT 2 Y
TRFRITIE ©

R-ZZTPENA » 11,270,00017 & A% 42
BITE - RAFERBAEFE - WEBER
TEATIE « RANFE @ SEEBREREE (=
ZTZXF : 500,000) c BE_ZEZTLF+
ZA=tT—H MARTENERIAAER
AT RS AR 0 R A T

Held by Exercise Price Number of options
HUTALHEE THEE BRESE
Directors HK$0.801 18,000,000
5= 0.8017% 7T



E TR A EIBR (#2%) BMR A" Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) Bt #53R&R KizE (&)

16 Reserves 16. fi#fE
) (Sl @) #%ME
(Note)
Merger
Share Exchange reserve  Retained
premium  reserve Sf{fEHE  earnings Total

Bl EXRE &) RERAN G
US$'000  US$'000  US$000  US$'000  US$'000
TEL  TERL TXR TXR FEu

At 1 January 2006 “EERE-A—H 47,358 4,170 79,994 86,305 217,827
Profit for the year AEEAF - - - 10,915 10,915
Dividends BRE - - - (4,734) (4,734)
Exchange translation differences  [& % =% - 1,026 - = 1,026
At 31 December 2006 —EERETZA=T-H 47,358 5,196 79,994 92,486 225,034
Representing: g

2006 Final dividend proposed BREERNN=2TRF

RERE 2,432

Others Hity 90,054
Retained earnings as at ZEEREFZA=1—H

31 December 2006 HRE & 92,486
At 1 January 2007 “TE+F—-F—H 47,358 5,196 79,994 92,486 225,034
Profit for the year REERA - - - 16,856 16,856
Dividends & - - = (6,422) (6,422)
Exchange translation differences  [& % Z % - 2,435 - - 2,435
At 31 December 2007 “ZEEFZA=+—H 47,358 7,631 79,994 102,920 237,903
Representing: B

2007 Final dividend proposed BRRNM_2T L4

RER B 4,432

Others Hith 98,488
Retained earnings as at “ZZtF+-RA=1—H

31 December 2007 HRE B 102,920
Note: it
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between REENEHBENNEER_"ZT _F+-A4
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the Z B EKEARATEENIE A MR AEE
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation completed KRG mEEA A R E R R M ETRAMERNZ
on 26 December 2002 and the nominal value of the share capital of o

the Company issued in exchange thereof.
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16 Reserves (continued) 16. f#fE (8&)
(b) Company (b) ZA&AF
Exchange Share  Retained
reserve  premium  earnings Total
EifkE BROEE RKRERA &5t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FTEr F=r FT=r FT=r
At 1 January 2006 —ZEAE-A—H (8) 194,098 2,945 197,035
Profit for the year REE R - - 12,704 12,704
Dividends ) - = (4,734) (4,734)
Exchange translation differences  [& X 2= %8 4 = = 4
At 31 December 2006 —EERF+-A=1+—H (4) 194,098 10,915 205,009
Representing: Bl
2006 Final dividend proposed BRLNOZZS R NFERAKRE 2,432
Others HA 8,483
Retained earnings as at ZEERFTZRA=1—H
31 December 2006 IR B A 10,915
At 1 January 2007 “TT+F—F—H (4) 194,098 10,915 205,009
Profit for the year REFZRBA - - 10,318 10,318
Dividends BB - - (6,422) (6,422)
Exchange translation differences B X =% 14 - - 14
At 31 December 2007 —EREF+ZRA=1—H 10 194,098 14,811 208,919
Representing: Bp -
2007 Final dividend proposed BERNN S LERBERE 4,432
Others Hit 10,379
Retained earnings as at —EELEFA=1T—H
31 December 2007 B R B 14,811

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law (2003
Revision) and the Articles of Association of the Company,
share premium of the Company is available for distribution
to shareholders subject to a solvency test on the Company
and the provision of the Articles of Association of the

Company.

RIEMSBHERRE(CET=FEFTHR)
FIMERARFMBERAR - NAFH
BB E R DR TR - AR RAAME
BEENATEAARAZERZMANR

=

E °
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Trade payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

MR R M= ()

17. FEFTE SER™

ENE S RANRRITAT

2007 2006

us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Current BN EA 11,688 15,299
30-90 days 30290k 1,436 1,804
91-180 days 912 180K 89 9
181-365 days 181%E 365K 2 4
13,215 17,116

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

AEBERNEZRFNREERATEE

SHA

2007 2006

US$ 000 US$'000

FER F=5x

Vietnam Dong BEE 6,906 6,684
US dollar ETT 5,744 9,145
PRC Renminbi AR 565 1,287
13,215 17,116
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18 Bank borrowings 18. fRITER
Group Company
AEHE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000 UsS$'000 Us$'000
FEn F=T FEn F=T
Long-term bank borrowings & #ER 17 & 3K
— secured (Note 34) - B (fsE34) 21,335 32,498 - =
— unsecured — f K AR 4,792 = - =
Current portion of RBRITERZ
long-term bank BVER 3R 1
borrowings (10,506) (11,162) - -
15,621 21,336 - -
Short-term bank borrowings 52 Hi$R 1T & 7K
— secured (Note 34) - B (fFsE34) - 4,421 - -
- unsecured — AR 18,969 36,399 6,291 8,612
18,969 40,820 6,291 8,612
The Group’s long-term bank borrowings were repayable as follows: REBHRARITERAR AT HREER :
Group Company
AEH NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FER FET FER FET
Within one year —F 10,506 11,162 - =
Between 1 and 2 years —ZE — 4 7,081 10,506 - =
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF 8,540 10,830 - =
26,127 32,498 - -
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18 Bank borrowings (continued) 18. SRITER (48)
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate changes SRS ENAEEER RN TEERN
and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: FIERAMAT

1-3 3-6 6 -12

Within months months months
1 month =z E= NE Total
—@BAR =@A K<MEA +=M@AH &5t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FExxr FE=Ex FET FET O OFER

At 31 December 2006 A S |
Total borrowings =+—HBEXREE 31,880 17,811 22,346 1,281 73,318
At 31 December 2007 —EEHFETA
Total borrowings =t+—BEXRLHE 23,325 11,355 10,416 - 45,096
The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest-rate changes EMESEETENRRRAERRAIEEN
and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: FIEBHEMT
Within 1-3
1 month months Total
—EBAR —Z=@EA &5t
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
F=ET FET FET
At 31 December 2006 —EERF+A
Total borrowings =+—BExER 5,300 3,312 8,612
At 31 December 2007 —TE+LF+R

Total borrowings =t+—BREE 2,500 3,791 6,291
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18 Bank borrowings (continued) 18. SRITER (48)
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the balance REEBH  AEEBERFERNENT :
sheet date were as follows:
2007 2006
New New
us PRC Taiwan us PRC Taiwan
dollar Renminbi dollar dollar ~ Renminbi dollar
2% AR%®  Ha% ET  ARE  HeE%
Bank borrowings RITER 6.3% 7.1% 3.5% 7.2% 6.6% 4.6%
The effective interest rates per annum of the Company at the REEBH AR BERFANEMAT
balance sheet date were as follows:
2007 2006
New New
us Taiwan us Taiwan
dollar dollar dollar dollar
E3 Fam =T Al
Bank borrowings RITERK 5.9% 3.5% 5.3% 4.6%
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair RITERNEESBENREATEE -
value.
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the RITERNERBS BRI TEBE :
following currencies:
Group Company
AEH P NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FER TFET FER FET
US dollar ETT 35,624 70,385 2,500 7,600
PRC Renminbi AR 5,681 1,921 - -
New Taiwan dollar e 3,791 1,012 3,791 1,012
45,096 73,318 6,291 8,612
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Deferred income tax

19.

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using the principal taxation rates
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is as

follows:

MR R M= ()

EIERTEH
ELEMGRIIRBREEAASEEERR
KRR ERHHNE RN KA TR ZEa
=

BEEMGEHAEZSOT :

2007 2006

Us$'000 Us$'000

FER F=E7T

At 1 January —H—H 11,449 12,026

Credited to income statement (Note 23) sFABEE (FisE23) (905) (577)

At 31 December +=ZRA=+—8H 10,544 11,449
Provided for in respect of: BEEBER

2007 2006

Us$'000 Us$'000

FER F=E7T

Accelerated tax depreciation IRFIE & 11,243 12,017

Other temporary differences H b BT = FE (699) (568)

10,544 11,449
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19 Deferred income tax (continued) 19. EEFTHEH (8)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior RNEEBELEMEHEERBE CREERR
to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) BB AR e AE SRR R E BT ¢

during the year is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHEE
Accelerated tax depreciation
IMEBIEITE
2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January —A—H 12,017 12,700
Credited to income statement SFABERE (774) (683)
At 31 December +=—A=+—8H 11,243 12,017

Deferred income tax assets ELEFIEHEE
Other temporary differences
Hi B EE
2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx F=ET
At 1 January —H—H (568) (674)
(Credited)/charged to income statement GPNYE:R -t il (131) 106
At 31 December +=—B=+—H (699) (568)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is i %5 B %5 € A 1T {E RE T 45 38 A 7 1H & B £
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against REFIHEAGEEE - BREMEHY KiE
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes BN CREE  AIRBEEREHEENS
relate to the same fiscal authority. The above deferred income tax B - FHUREMSHREERBBEEE
assets and liabilities have been offset and are shown in the i ARG AEEEAGBRELEMSHA

consolidated balance sheet under deferred income tax liabilities. BHET
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20 Turnover 20. ¥
(a) The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based food (a) AEEBEREESHFERLAMNE
additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-based FEEMRAERHER 81T
industrial products including modified starch, glucose syrup, WD - AR RS T BB R
MSG, soda, acid and beverages. Turnover recognised for the ikt HE_TTLFR-FTTREF
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 is US$317,431,000 TZA=T—HIEFERERRE S
and US$290,695,000 respectively. BN R A317,431,000E% T K&

290,695,000 7T ©

(b) Other gains-net (b) HAWEFE
2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000
FER FET
Net exchange gain HNEE U 75 5B 816 38
Net loss from sale of electricity HEENFEE (14) (94)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant  HEWE - BE K
and equipment HiElE S (B518) 603 (58)
Sale of scrap materials FERIEHE 489 334
Interest income from held-to-maturity BERIH
financial assets LREEERNE A 248 251
Technology support income BT Z WA - 941
Others Hth 271 776

2,413 2,188
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21 Expenses by nature 21. BMEENEX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses HERA - EBERDBERAIRITBAZA
and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BIEMNRZSTET
2007 2006
us$'000 USs$'000
FER F=T
Changes in inventories of finished goods and SR MMER R TFEEE
work-in-progress 5,952 15,892
Raw materials and consumables used 2 A R BHAE 213,713 190,941
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 1,462 1,323
Amortisation of land use rights 3 {5 P R 4 135 125
Auditor’s remuneration =B RN & 295 256
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  #1% - HE MR IEFTE 28,050 27,046
Operating leases expenses in respect of BREEE LA R
leasehold land 149 125
Employee benefit expenses (Note 27) EERAALZ (fFiE27) 18,109 15,799
Other expenses HEMAx 26,877 20,783
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HEKRA BEERIHEHAZR
expenses and administrative expenses THHAXBE 294,742 272,290
22 Finance costs 22. BERE
2007 2006
Us$000 Us$'000
FEn FET
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITERFMEFZ 4,223 5,498
Amortisation of discount on long-term REEN —2EBEALT
payable to a related party (Note 33(c)) B AT SR 3 8 (M9 RE33(0) 515 585
Interest income B U A (374) (252)

4,364 5,831
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23 Income tax expense 23. FiSHBX
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income Rére BmRk AR RIESE

statement represents:

2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Enterprise income tax (“EIT") RERER ([REMETH]) 5,764 4,004
Under provision of income tax in previous years 38 4F € BT {5 Ft B & T 2 19 264
Deferred income tax (Note 19) EEFTER (H5E19) (905) (577)
Withholding tax TR - 136
4,878 3,827
The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs REB RGBT Z AT HE s
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable KAAEEEZWB AR —K (ME) i
taxation rate for Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited PAERADF ([MEKRST]) B E AR = mat
("Vietnam Vedan”), which is a major subsidiary of the Company, ERNEGBHANEENOT
as follows:
2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000
FER FET
Profit before Income tax ¥ P45 25 Al &2 A 20,738 14,762
Calculated at taxation rate of 15% LR RI15%tH
(2006: 15%) (ZEZRF : 15%) 3,110 2,214
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AT 1R B0 B A =2 1,052 1,144
Withholding tax TR - 136
Effect of different tax rate TR EZ w2 (442) (29)
Under provision of income tax in previous years 8% E# & T2 19 264
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B F 2 Ai 7 f& 7R 5% 75 5 18 (187) =
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax ERERELEFRGEMEENTE
asset was recognised 474 98
Taxation charge BB 4,878 3,827
Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses EIEFTS A E T E ERER T = E
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax AR R PE R A B IR Mt TS A B8
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group {ETER » ANEEF ARERTIE4,123,000%
has unrecognised tax losses of US$4,123,000 (2006: JC(ZEE R ¢ 2,210,00037T) Al 4582 A
US$2,210,000) to carry forward against future taxable income. HEH AR R FERTLIA o ZERIBEN —F

These tax losses will expire in one to five years. ERFHEEFNE o
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24

Income tax expense (continued)
Enterprise income tax (“EIT")
(i) Vietnam

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax
purposes. The applicable EIT rates for the Group's operations
in Vietnam range from 10% to 25%, as stipulated in the
respective subsidiaries’ investment licenses.

(i)~ The PRC

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax
purposes. The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations
in the PRC range from 18% to 33%.

(iii) ~ Singapore/Hong Kong
No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as

the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year.

(iv)  Taiwan
EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax
purposes. The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations
in Taiwan is 25%.

Profit attributable to shareholders

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company to the extent
of US$10,318,000 (2006: US$12,704,000).

23.

24,

—ZTELFFH Annual Report 2007

MR M= (&)

Frie#Himx (&)

RSB

() B
1R PR STIR I 75 A RAVATE B AR
B BRAEHABERBRTAN
BE SR B AR - REEE
MHERBEREEMEHRENF10%
£25% ' B ARIRBHIRERA
EFRE °

(i) PEARLFE ([FE])
1 TS B IR B 75 FR #R A A B B FIGT
& AR H B ARSI
BB HE EHFAE - AEEESF
B ESEBCEMSHENT18%

£33% °

(i) FI0%s B
B P 7N £ (B A 2R 4F [ 3 4 TE ST N3 K
BB R ES AT ERT AR -
I b 42 1E HA BT N3 S 4G B
& o

(iv) &
EMERIEY EBRIEAE BT
& BRATEHAE AR NA
WS BEEH AR - AEFES
R ER R ERBRERA25% °

BEELRF

ST AR R RER G B 15 3R R A9 A% 3R B 15 & 7
A10,318,000X L (ZEZTXF ¢
12,704,000 7T) ©
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26

MR R M= ()

Dividends 25. IR
2007 2006
Us$000 US$'000
FEn FET
2007 Interim dividend of 0.26202 US cents ERNZZTLFHERE
(2006: 0.19872 US cents) per ordinary share, BAREBAR0.26202 1L
paid (ZEZ ] 0.19872% 1) 3,990 3,026
2007 Final dividend of 0.29105 US cents BEREE_ZTLFRBARE
(2006: 0.15971 US cents) per ordinary share, A% @ A%0.291053 1L
proposed (ZZZREF £ 015971241 4,432 2,432
8,422 5,458
Earnings per share 26. Bix&EF

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of US$16,856,000
(2006: US$10,915,000) by 1,522,742,000 (2006: 1,522,742,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year (Note 15).

Diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all share
options. A calculation is done to determine the number of shares
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the pre-IPO share options.

BRERREFILRAN N B RRAER A ABEEF)
16,856,000 7T (=& F /34 : 10,915,000
T BRAF AR B1TE@A%1,522,742,000
(ZFF/N4E ¢ 1,522,742,0000%) 5T& (5%
15) °

BREERNTVRBRITEAA HARITE
BREmMETZEBRREE TAREM:
H o BROBE ZFER/RERRITEBR
BB zRBER2EEEE  BAFEUA
ARRRG Z FHFETHERER) BA
ZBRMER - RIFLAFESH 2 ROK
B B R ERTT I B R 2 5 B A S A 1
EBRTZBOHBELR -

2007 2006
Us$000 Us$'000
FEn FET
Profit attributable to equity holders of RABRERE AELER
the Company 16,856 10,915
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B BT E BRI T 8
in issue (thousands) (LAF3ED) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Adjustments for outstanding share options B ARAT R R AR A
(thousands) (LAF3ED) 3,394 2,431
Weighted average number of ordinary shares SRS &R F| 2 5 217
for diluted earnings per share (thousands) T E AR N T 9 B (VAT &) 1,526,136 1,525,173
Diluted earnings per share FREE B A
(US cents per share) (FR3EAL) 1.10 0.72
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Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ 27. EERAX (BIEEEEHM)
remuneration)

2007 2006
Us$000 US$'000
FEx FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances I8 - EHKEM 14,574 13,266
Bonuses TE4T 1,634 917
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIREKA — ERBHRETE 903 796
Other employee benefits H e B8 @A 998 820
18,109 15,799

Employee retirement benefits

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored defined contribution retirement
plans for its employees in Xiamen, Shandong and Shanghai, the
PRC. The Group contributes to the plans at rates ranging from
8% to 22% of the basic salaries predetermined by local
governments. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.
For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group has contributed
approximately US$215,000 (2006: US$153,000) to the aforesaid
state-sponsored retirement plans.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Vietnam, the Group
contributes to stated-sponsored employees’ social insurance
scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group contributes to
the scheme at a rate of 15% of the employee’s salary. The state-
sponsored social insurance scheme is responsible for the entire
obligations payable to retired employees. For the year ended 31
December 2007, the Group has contributed approximately
US$584,000 (2006: US$539,000) to the aforesaid state-sponsored
social insurance scheme.

28.

ESEAKER

BERENRBEEG  ANEBAPEHE
F9- IR E EBEERBERE AN EEE
FORRGTEMEH R - NEEEZ LTS
MERRBEWRTEEEFNS%E
22% ° BIRE WA RN 8 B & RRIKE
BXHFBARKERN BEZTZLFT
ZA=T—HALFE AEERLEMRBER
&R R IRET B 50 49215,000%E T (=&
TN4F 1 153,00037T) °

BESENRAEES  AEEAUEE
BRBER & ¥ A E B SRS 1E L &
Ho AEEIZEEEFSM15% M E{EL
HR - BREPDTSRBETEEERE
KEBREMBRE -BHE_TTLF+
—A=+—RIEFE  AEEMAEARBER
& IRt e (R T B 3 4Y584,000% 7T
(ZZZ /X% : 539,000%7T) °
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29 Emoluments of directors and senior management

(a)

29. EEREREEENTM

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to () AFEAKERARREZESZCN KE
the directors of the Company by the Group during the year NEFmaEm T
are as follows:
2007 2006
Us$000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Fees Hne - -
Basic salaries and allowances [ %7 & Rh 1,435 1,421
Discretionary bonuses 15 2 PRI FEAL 1,575 873
3,010 2,294

The emoluments of the directors of the Company fell within

the following bands:

ARBEENH M FATEE :

Number of directors

EE=HA
2007 2006
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T
(approximately US$128,000) (#7128,000%7T) 5 6
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L% 2,500,000/ 7T
(approximately US$256,001 to (#9256,001% T E
US$320,000) 320,000 1) 2 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T & 3,500,0007% &
(approximately US$384,001 to (#9384,001%TE
US$448,000) 448,000% 1) 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 T 2 4,000,0007% 75
(approximately US$448,001 to (#3448,001%TE
US$513,000) 513,000%7T) - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ 725,500,000/ 70
(approximately US$641,001 to (#9641,001% L&
US$705,000) 705,000% 7T) 1 =
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 L% 7,500,000/ 7T
(approximately US$897,001 to (#9897,001%& L&
US$960,000) 960,000 JT) - 1
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 7T & 10,500,0007% 7T
(approximately US$1,280,001 to (#31,280,001E L&
US$1,344,000) 1,344,000 7T) 1 -
10 11

None of the directors of the Company waived any
emoluments during the year (2006: Nil).

AEEARRESYBREEAHH (T

TREFE) o
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29 Emoluments of directors and senior management 29. EEREREEEMFM (B)

(continued)
Discretionary Other
Fees Salary bonuses  benefits (i) Total
Name of Director BEHR he #¢ WMEREEL HHEAN) &
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TEL TEL Txn Txn FEL
Executive Director HTES:
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung RBEERE - 356 945 16 1317
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE = 200 472 13 685
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEERE - 314 7 16 402
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 204 43 16 263
Mr. Wang, Joel . TEREE - 223 43 16 282
Non-executive Director FUTES:
Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng (Note (ii) BB 5 4 (M) - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRATE - - - 13 13
Mr. Lam, Tuan (Note (ii) i 5 A (B3 (D) = = = = =
Independent BUFHTES:
non-executive Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BERAE - - - 12 12
Ms. Chuang, Shu-Fen Y - = = 12 12
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen fBaLE - - - 12 12

Total Bt - 1,297 1,575 138 3,010




m RIS (%) AR 27 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) Bf#5$R & izt (&)

29 Emoluments of directors and senior management 29. EERSREHEENFHFM (&)

(continued)
The remuneration of the directors of the Company for the year HE-ZEF+_A=1t—RHLEFER
ended 31 December 2006 is set out below: RAESHHMEZIOT
Discretionary Other
Fees Salary bonuses  benefits(i) Total
Name of Director BEEfR e e MEZHEL HegNi) i
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET TEn TEn
Executive Director HiTES:
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung GEELE - 363 583 13 959
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - 200 250 13 463
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEERE - 312 20 13 345
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRUEE - 201 10 13 224
Mr. Wang, Joel . TEREE - 219 10 13 242
Non-executive Director FHTES !
Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng (Note (ii) A5 (M = = = 9 9
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRRLE - - - 13 13
Mr. Lam, Tuan (Note (ii)) WEEE (K = = = 3 3
Independent BUEBTES:
non-executive Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HERLE - - - 12 12
Ms. Chuang, Shu-Fen 1908 - - - 12 12
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen ks E - - - 12 12
Total Rt - 1,295 873 126 2,294
Notes: Mt & -
(i) Other benefits include travelling allowance. () H i@ F PR =R o
(i) Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheong was appointed while Mr. Lam, Tuan resigned iy RAFERBGREEZEABARARIENITE

as non-executive director of the Company during the year. F - MBS ERE -
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29 Emoluments of directors and senior management 29. EEREREEEMFM (B)
(continued)

(b)  The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in (b) ANEEFESERNxSH M RAA
the Group for both years were also directors and their THRES  KENMESEHN EX
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. DA °

() During the year, no emoluments have been paid to the (0 AFEEWEAARNTESHAEERR
directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals UsxmPBMATZAME - (EARE
of the Group as an inducement to join or as compensation DO ER B 1) 22D Sk Bt Bk A 18 ©

for loss of office.

Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December RZETLRZTZERNF+ZA=+
2007 and 2006 which have been granted to the Directors of —BAREE R AR SR EREE
the Group under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as BT EERMm W ARITEEBREFIF
follows: T
Number of options
BREHA
Held as at

31 December 2006 and
31 December 2007
Directors —EENEZH-BR Exercise price Date of grant Exercise period

g3 “ERLETCAST-RER %@ RiHAS TEHE

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung 4,500,000 HK$0.801 13 June 2003 13 June 2004 to

BEELE 0.8017%TT “EE=FxAt=H 12 June 2008
—“TENE
~ATZEE
“EEN\E
~ATZH

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen 4,500,000 HK$0.801 13 June 2003 13 June 2004 to

BRUEE 0.80178 7T —EZ=£5A+=H 12 June 2008
—“TENE
~NAT=EZE
“TTNE
~AtT-H

Mr. YANG, Cheng 4,500,000 HK$0.801 13 June 2003 13 June 2004 to
BERE 080138 —ZE=F A1=H 12 June 2008
—“TENF
~NETZHE
“ZTN\E
~ATZH

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang 4,500,000 HK$0.801 13 June 2003 13 June 2004 to

BT E 0.80138 7T “EE=FRAT=H 12 June 2008
—“TENE
~At=RZE
“EEN\E
~ATZH
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30 Cash generated from operations 30. HEEBRBRE

2007 2006

Us$000 US$'000

FER FET

Profit before income tax RETPT 15 B Al & A 20,738 14,762
Adjustments for: BATIEE AR

Finance costs — net (Note 22) B R A FEE (i 5E22) 3,849 5,246

Interest received from held-to-maturity financial & Wi A = 2 &

assets SREENFE (248) (251)
Amortisation of discount on long-term payable &HIEN — BREA T

to a related party BT AR 1 55 515 585
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BE & R BT E (Ki£7)

(Note 7) 28,050 27,046
Amortisation of intangible assets E A E#E (IES)

(Note 8) 1,462 1,323
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) I Hbf5E AR A 8 (MY 5E6) 135 125
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BB R&E ()

equipment (see below) & (R T30 (603) 58

53,898 48,894
Change in working capital (excluding the effects &EE &5 CRatWIEFE R

of acquisition and exchange difference on HAEENEHER)

consolidation)

— Inventories -FE 9,350 (13,527)

— Trade receivables, prepayments and other - BB SRR - ERNRIER

receivables o fth fE W FR 1A (4,506) (2,346)

— Trade payables, accruals and other payables - B E SRR « Bt EA K (3,109) (2,879)

o fth fE A R IE

— Amount due to a related party -EN—BBREANTRIEA 43 (16)
Cash generated from operations KEEBARFES 55,676 30,126
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of TiReREenERN  HEWE  BEK
property, plant and equipment comprise: RBATERIBLT ¢

2007 2006
Us$000 Us$'000
FEx FETT
Net book amount (Note 7) BREDFE (M13E7) 78 81
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEK
equipment Bz W (BiE) 603 (58)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand ~ H&E¥% « BE K&
equipment REBATIS IR 681 23
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31 Commitments 31. &iE
(a) Capital commitments for property, plant and (a) Y% BERRBHEREE

equipment

2007 2006

Us$000 US$'000

FEn FET

Contracted but not provided for EEFONEER 2 3,893 211

Authorised but not contracted for ERERRETL 6,031 14,823

(b) Lease commitments

(b) FHARIE

AEBEREBE T OO T HBELLERHOMA
RARI N REBHOAZEBNAT :

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments
in respect of land under non-cancellable operating leases as

follows:

2007 2006
us$'000 Us$'000
FER FET
Not later than one year F—FNRN 125 118

Later than one year and not later than F_EFRFNA
five years 483 466
Later than five years FERFER 3,411 3,299
4,019 3,883

32 Contingent liabilities 32. KRBT/
As at 31 December 2007, the Company has given guarantees for RZZTZLFF+_A=+—0 " AQFAE

bank borrowings of subsidiaries amounting to US$179,249,000 ME AR REBRITEE ZERE

(2006: US$172,404,000) of which US$141,102,000 has not been 179,249,000% L (=T Z X F -

utilised. 172,404,00057T) » HH141,102,0005 7T
mARBA ©
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33 Related party transactions

(a)

(b)

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

33.

Significant related parties transactions, which were carried

MR R M= ()

FRAEALXS

(a) EAKEREXBTEAMEALE

out in the normal course of the Group’s business are as THERZSAT :
follows:
2007 2006
Note US$'000 Us$'000
(i TER FT=r
Sale of goods to Vedan Enterprise A & ER R M BR A A
Corporation (“Taiwan Vedan”) (TREKMA HEEm (i) 2,584 4,085
Technological support fee paid to EENETHE )
Tung Hai Fermentation Industrial BERAR R AERMAXM
Co., Ltd. and Taiwan Vedan BEilix e (ii) 2,653 2,422
Technological support fee received e & JE IR ST IER
from Taiwan Vedan Bt RS - 20
Commission income from W& ZKRAHEEKA
Taiwan Vedan (ii) 85 73
Commission paid to Taiwan Vedan A &ERALZFHEEEA
(ii) 12 -

Notes:

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to the

related party were conducted in the normal course of business

at prices and terms no less favourable than those charged to

and contracted with other third party customers of the Group.

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the

transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of

business and the fees are charged in accordance with the

terms of underlying agreements.

Key management compensation

(i) ARRAEERRMEMEALHERER
BEBHET - BERRIERTERNRE
BEAME=ETL RPN RETLE

B R AR °

(i) ARAEERB/RLIXHEATRBHE

(b) FEEEAEME

17 3 B RB AR 3 W0 IR R -

2007 2006
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FEn FET
Salaries and other short-term employee  #FH& K HEMEHE THA
benefits 2,949 2,233




—ZTELFFH Annual Report 2007 CEII:)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) Bt #§3R &R KizE (&)

33 Related party transactions (continued) 33. FRAEALRS (@)
(c) Balances with related parties () EBREALHNGEER
As at 31 December 2007, the Group had the following RZZEZLFEF+_A=+—H0 &%
significant balances with related parties: EEEEREANTEATERLER ©
2007 2006
Note Us$'000 US$'000
B 5 FER F=ET
Current: BNER -
Trade receivable from related FEWE AT
parties (Note 12) 2 55 (Mt3E12) (i)
— Shanghai Vedan Foods - EBRAR® - 4
— Taiwan Vedan - BEIRT 339 359
339 363
Due to Taiwan Vedan &S FRIA (i) 301 258
Non-current: FERDER
Due to Taiwan Vedan in connection 7 388 3% p 1Z fE {F
with assignment of trademarks BB RIE (ii) 9,393 11,023

Notes: M3

(i) All these balances with related parties are unsecured, interest- (i) BREEATHRAASIEEER - 28 5%
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. EEE RN -

(i) The amount represents the fair value payable to Taiwan Vedan (i) ZFEEERBERE TREEMERNSE
for assignment of certain trademarks. It is payable by seven K2 AFE HER-ZT+F—A—
equal annual instalment commencing on 1 January 2007. The B »+tHEFINERNKE - BER
face amount is US$15,014,000 and was discounted to fair 15,014,0003% 7t * WiIRIRIBEERIZE
value using a rate based on the borrowing rate of 4.7% at ZEENEATEAE ZFERREAT
the date of assignment of the trademarks. '

34 Banking facilities 34. RITEE
The Group's bank borrowings of US$21,335,000 (2006: AEBR T LF+ A :‘l'—EIE’]’fE
US$36,919,000) as at 31 December 2007 were secured by: 1718 521,335,000 L (ZEZTRF ¢

36,919,000 7T) A RN7I & I8 E A

(i) legal charges over certain of the Group’s property, plant and (i) $E & AR F{E4925,417,000€ TR
equipments with the net book value of approximately ETWE BEERZE(ZEZZX
US$25,417,000 (2006: property, plant and equipments and F Y% BEREZEAKR T HEH
land use rights of US$41,908,000); and #41,908,0003% 7T) FEEHRM &

(i)  corporate guarantee provided by the Company. (i) ARFRHEHATER -
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Five Year Financial Summary H#F B EEHE

BEE+-A=+-HLFEREXHR

Consolidated Results For The years ended 31 December

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEX F=ET F=ET FET FET
Consolidated Result A XA
Turnover - 317,431 290,695 257,904 224,976 203,797
Profit before taxation B 754 BT &2 A 20,738 14,762 10,240 29,887 26,194
Taxation THIE (4,878) (3,827) (2,293) (5,553) (4,115)
Profit for the year and ~ ANFEEF &
attributable to equity  ZNA &) fR4E
holders of the HE AEMNL
Company BEA 16,856 10,915 7,947 24,334 22,079

Consolidated Assets And Liabilities As at 31 December R+=-B=+—B&SEeEEREAERE

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FEx FET FEx F=T

Assets and liabilities
Total assets 347,840 367,458 371,340 337,269 313,033
Total liabilities (90,124) (123,474) (134,685) (102,748) (87,910)
Total equity 257,716 243,984 236,655 234,521 225,123

Note: Certain comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2004 have iz :

been restated to reflect the adoption of new/revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards. The comparative figure for the year ended

31 December 2003 have not been restated as the Directors considered

that this would involve undue delay and expenses.

HE_ZTNFE+_A=+—-BIIFENET
ERBFEB T - LARMEANIET ST
BEMBHREER - HE—ZT=F+_F=
TRLEFENLREFIESD - HEER
RESERTHVENTERRER -
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Listing Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx")
Stock Code
HKEXx 2317
Access to Bloombeg 2317 HK Equity
Access to Reuters 2317.HK
Board Lot 4,000
Par Value Us$0.01
Trading Currency HKD

Financial Calendar

Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Register of members closed

31 December, 2007
15 April, 2008
3-6 June, 2008

Annual general meeting
Despatch of dividend warrants

27 May, 2008

on or about

19 June 2008

In the 1st week of
September, 2008*

Interim results to be announced

* subject to change

Final Dividend

The board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 0.29105 US
cents per share in respect of the year ended 31 December, 2007. Subject
to shareholders’ par approval, the final dividend will be paid in cash to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 6 June, 2007.

Dividend warrants will be despatched to shareholders on or about 19
June, 2008.

The register of members will be closed from 3-6 June, 2008, both dates
inclusive. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrars not later
than 2 June 2008.

Shareholder Services

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrars:

Tengis Limited

26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Hong Kong branch
share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.

=il REBBERZITBR
ARIERLET ([BERAT])

& 7 1R 5%

B 22 PT 2317

TERA 2317 HK Equity

PRFARRE © 2317.HK

BEE®EM © 4,000

HE 0.01 7T

RHEH BT

HBITERE

EFEEEREE —EELFE+-_HA=1+—H

EEFEEENMG —EENFHA+EA

R EIF & —ETN\FEA=H

EVaNE

RERBFRE —EENFRA-+LtHRH

FEKREE N/ E_TENE
~A+hB
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E—E2H*

* BRFERE

KERE

EEeESRBRHE _TELHE+_RF=1+—8H
IEFEEZ R B FA0.291055 1L - AR
R RERBBURSRNF S NFRA
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BREERR _ZETNFANATNAAHZBRERS
TR -
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HiB
B 2/ AN BR285%

& SEIE R 02618
T3 : (852) 2980 1768
{85 : (852) 2528 3158
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Investor Relations

The Group has been professional and truthful in maintaining optimum
contact and all-round communication with investors. The approach
enables it to collect information and valuable opinions from investors
and disclose in a timely manner the Group’s business strategies and
directions. In doing so, the Group hopes to perfect corporate governance
and strengthen investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team met with investors
regularly in Hong Kong and proactively provided investors with the latest
information about the Group and its business to help them make the
best investment decisions.

Providing the latest information and news about the Group to investors
has been one of the most significant missions of Vedan. Since listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, the Group has organized investor
presentations for interim and annual results announcements in Hong
Kong, during which the Management explained to the investors the
Group’s latest operations and future development plans. During the year
under review, the Group held investor meetings in Hong Kong including
one-on-one meetings and teleconferences with more than 20 renowned
international financial institutions, namely Deutsche Bank, Citigroup,
Value Partners, BNP Paribas, UOB Kay Hian, CIMB-GK Securities, Kim
Eng Securities, etc, serving as an important medium for investor relations.

Vedan has relentlessly expanded its local and overseas investors network.
The Group has also actively participated in various investment forums in
Hong Kong and Singapore, including the “Vietnam Access Day” hosted
by CLSA. It helped the investors to understand more about the Group'’s
business operations, and promote Vedan’s core competencies and
investment values to overseas investors, so as to strengthen the Group’s
shareholders base.

Apart meetings with investors, the Group’s annual reports, interim reports
and announcements are also available on its website. Investors thus have
full access to the latest information of the Group on the website which is
also an effective channel of communication with the investor community.
The Company website address is: http://www.vedaninternational.com.

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors. The
e-mail address of our investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com.
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